Case 3:24-cv-00717-DIN Document 7 Filed 11/12/24 Page 1 of 1 PagelD# 1324

3:24¢cv00717
Ofticial Committee of Unsecured Creditors
V.

Hopeman Brothers, Inc., et al.

Designation of Records
Part 11

2432428241212000000000006


https://ecf.vaed.uscourts.gov/doc1/189113806602
¨2¤K8<8,,     &^«

2432428241212000000000006


Camec23-3P428R T P7-dt dbocitech07/30/Eded HAta A D7 BOHRA11S6E UP FhgdlesclBizin

Document

Gerolyn P. Roussel (pro hac vice pending)
Jonathan B. Clement (pro hac vice pending)
Benjamin P. Dinehart (pro hac vice pending)
ROUSSEL & CLEMENT

1550 West Causeway Approach

Mandeville, LA 70471

Telephone: (985) 778-2733

Facsimile: (985) 778-2734

Email: rcfirm@rousselandclement.com

Lead Counsel for Janet Rivet, Kayla Rivet,
Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann
Ragusa Primeaux, Stephanie Jean Ragusa
Connors, Erica Dandry Constanza and
Monica Dandry Hallner

Page 1 of 42

Robert S. Westerman (VSB No. 43294)

Kollin G. Bender (VSB No. 98912)

HIRSCHLER FLEISCHER, P.C.

The Edgeworth Building

2100 East Cary Street

Richmond, Virginia 23223

P.O. Box 500

Richmond, Virginia 23218-0500

Telephone: (804) 771-9500

Facsimile: (804) 644-0957

Email: rwestermann@hirschlerlaw.com
kbender@hirschlerlaw.com

Local Counsel for Janet Rivet, Kayla Rivet,
Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann
Ragusa Primeaux, Stephanie Jean Ragusa
Connors, Erica Dandry Constanza and
Monica Dandry Hallner

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

RICHMOND DIVISION
In re: *
* Chapter 11
HOPEMAN BROTHERS, INC., *
* Case No. 24-32428 KLP
Debtor *
*

OPPOSITION AND OBJECTION TO MOTION OF THE DEBTOR FOR ENTRY OF

INTERIM AND FINAL ORDERS EXTENDING THE AUTOMATIC STAY TO STAY

ASBESTOS-RELATED ACTIONS AGAINST NON-DEBTOR DEFENDANTS

NOW INTO COURT, through undersigned counsel, come Janet Rivet and Kayla Rivet

(surviving spouse and child of Tommy Rivet), Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann Ragusa

Primeaux, and Stephanie Jean Ragusa Connors (surviving spouse and children of Frank P. Ragusa,
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Jr.), and Erica Dandry Constanza and Monica Dandry Hallner (surviving children of Michael
Dandry, Jr.) (collectively “Creditors”), who oppose the Motion for Entry of Interim and Final Orders
Extending the Automatic Stay to Stay Asbestos-Related Actions Against Non-Debtor Defendants
filed by Hopeman Brothers, Inc. (“Hopeman”).' For the reasons set forth below, Creditors oppose
an extension of the automatic stay solely to the extent it seeks to stay Louisiana direct action claims
against non-debtor, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company (“Liberty Mutual”), pursuant to the primary
Comprehensive General Liability (“CGL”) policies issued by Liberty Mutual covering Hopeman.
Creditors herein submit that a stay should not apply to direct action claims against non-
debtor, Liberty Mutual, for several reasons. First, as explained in Section I, infra, Hopeman admits
that it no longer has any property interest in the Liberty Mutual CGL policies, and the policies are
not even listed as assets of Hopeman in its Schedule of Assets.> Thus, direct action claims against
Liberty Mutual cannot deplete the bankruptcy estate since Hopeman is not claiming that these
policies are actually assets of its estate. Second, even if Hopeman did still have a property interest
in the Liberty Mutual policies, and even if the policies were listed as assets in the Hopeman’s
Schedule of Assets, Louisiana claimants still have a right to pursue direct action claims against non-
debtor insurers regardless of whether the insured has filed for bankruptcy. Third, federal courts,
including the U.S. Fourth Circuit, have only extended stays to a non-debtor under very limited
circumstances, and Hopeman has failed to meet its burden of establishing that the circumstances of
this case are such that a stay should be entered prohibiting Creditors from pursuing direct action

claims against Liberty Mutual. Hopeman has offered absolutely no support other than attorney

'In re: Hopeman Brothers, Inc., United States Bankruptcy Court, Eastern District of
Virginia, Richmond Division, No. 24-32428 KLP at Docket (“BR Doc.”) No. 7.
’BR Doc. 59 at pp. 22-23.

2
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argument that Louisiana direct action claims could actually diminish the Liberty Mutual CGL
policies. As is explained in Section IV(B), infra, the Louisiana direct action claims against Liberty
Mutual cannot diminish these policies because the types of claims at issue are not subject to
aggregate limits. Hopeman has submitted nothing to refute this evidence.

1. The bankruptcy court should not stay Creditors ability to pursue direct action claims

against Liberty Mutual pursuant to the CGL policies issued to Hopeman because
Hopeman has admitted that these policies are no longer assets of its estate.

Creditors’ objection is limited solely to the extent that Hopeman is seeking a stay of
Louisiana asbestos-related direct action claims against non-debtor, Liberty Mutual Insurance
Company, pursuant to CGL policies issued by Liberty Mutual.

Hopeman relies upon Section 362(a)(1) as well as Section 362(a)(3) as a basis for its
requested relief. Hopeman argues that the Section 362(a)(1) stay can be applied to non-debtors
where there is an identity of interest between the debtor and non-debtor third parties.” Hopeman
asserts that the circumstances warranting a stay under Section 362(a)(1) that are present in this
proceeding are that “actions against the Protected Parties will deplete the Debtor’s insurance
coverage” and that allowing these direct action lawsuits will result in “reducing shared insurance and
undercutting a principal asset of the estate.”™ Regarding Section 362(a)(3), Hopeman similarly argues
that this provision warrants the implementation of a stay because insurance contracts are property
of the estate and that allowing claims against the insurers would deplete the Debtor’s insurance.’
Hopeman offers no support for this argument, especially as it applies to Liberty Mutual’s CGL

policies.

*BR Doc. 7 at pp. 8-9, Paragraph 24.
‘BR Doc. 7 at p. 9, Paragraph 25.
*BR Doc. 7 at p. 10, Paragraph 29.
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Neither Section 362(a)(1) nor Section 362(a)(3) warrant a stay as to Louisiana direct action
claims against Liberty Mutual for those CGL policies covering Hopeman. “Extending the automatic
stay or issuing an injunction for non-debtors contravenes a basic and compelling principle of federal
bankruptcy law”,® and “[t]he burden of proof to show that the automatic stay is applicable to a
non-debtor is on the party invoking the stay.” Hopeman has made no showing whatsoever as to how
Louisiana direct action claims against Liberty Mutual could possibly deplete Hopeman’s bankruptcy
estate. This showing was not made by Hopeman because allowing direct action claims of Creditors
herein against Liberty Mutual cannot deplete the bankruptcy estate.

Based upon Hopeman’s representations to this Court already made in its bankruptcy filings,
Hopeman no longer has any right or property interest in the Liberty Mutual CGL policies. In its
Schedule of Assets filed in this bankruptcy proceeding, Hopeman does not list any of the Liberty
Mutual CGL policies as an asset of its estate because Hopeman no longer has any rights or
ownership of these policies.® This is further confirmed by Hopeman’s President, Christopher Lascell,
who states in his Declaration filed in this matter that any rights Hopeman may have originally had
under these Liberty Mutual CGL policies have been released by Hopeman pursuant to settlement

agreements between Hopeman and Liberty Mutual.’ In fact, in its Schedule of Assets, Hopeman

¢In re Qimonda Ag, 482 B.R. 879, 895 (Bankr. E.D. Va. 2012) (quoting Vitro v. ACP
Master, Ltd. (In re Vitro), 455 B.R. 571, 581 (Bankr. N.D. Tex. 2011)).

"In re Xenon Anesthesia of Tex., PLLC, 510 B.R. 106, 111 (Bankr. S.D. Tex. 2014)
(citing Beran v. World Telemetry, Inc., 747 F. Supp. 2d 719, 723 (S.D. Tex. 2010) (“The party
invoking the stay has the burden to show that it is applicable. See 2 William L. Norton, Jr.,
Norton Bankruptcy Law and Practice § 43:4 (3d ed. Supp. 2010) (noting that in bankruptcy court
proceedings, ‘the party seeking to extend the stay will bear the burden to show that 'unusual
circumstances' exist warranting such an extension of the stay to a nondebtor”).

*BR Doc. 59 at pp. 22-23.

’BR Doc. 8 at Paragraph 34.
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even references a 2003 settlement agreement between Liberty Mutual and Hopeman, which
presumably confirms Mr. Lascell’s testimony as Hopeman releasing its rights as to these policies and
also likely confirms why the policies were not listed as assets by Hopeman in its Schedule of
Assets.'” Instead, in its Schedule of Assets, Hopeman only lists Liberty Mutual workers’
compensation policies covering the years between 1974 and 1985."" However, Creditors herein are
not maintaining an objection as whether a stay should be issued as to direct action claims pursuant
to these Liberty Mutual workers’ compensation policies because none of the Creditors herein were
direct employees of Hopeman. Accordingly, the Creditors’ claims do not trigger coverage under the
workers’ compensation policies.

Hopeman represents to the Court, without support, that a stay is necessary because asbestos-
related actions “would further deplete the Debtor’s largest asset — its insurance policies — and
prejudice the Debtor’s estate.”'? Hopeman also represents to the Court that “[t]he relief requested
herein, therefore, is critical for the Debtor’s ability to achieve a primary goal of this chapter 11 case

— ensuring a fair and equitable distribution of the Debtor’s remaining assets among claimants with

allowed asbestos-related claims against the Debtor.”"* However, as noted above, Hopeman’s
Schedule of Assets filed in this bankruptcy proceeding make clear that the Liberty Mutual CGL
policies are not among the remaining assets of the Debtor." Thus, Louisiana direct action claims
against Liberty Mutual present no risk to Hopeman’s property that can be depleted. In fact, Hopeman

has represented to this Court that the Liberty Mutual policies are exhausted as to Hopeman and that

“BR Doc. 59 at p. 76.

"BR Doc. 59 at pp. 22-23.

2BR Doc. 7, at p. 3, Paragraph 8.
“BR Doc. 7, at p. 5, Paragraph 17.
“R. Doc. 59 at pp. 22-23.
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Hopeman no longer has any rights under these policies due to their settlement agreement.”> Thus,
Section 362(a) is inapplicable as it relates to the Liberty Mutual CGL policies.

While Hopeman may have agreed to release any rights it had to the Liberty Mutual CGL
policies, these sort of agreements between an insurer and an insured have no effect on a injured tort
victim’s rights under the policy.'® For example, in Courville v. Lamorak Ins. Co., another asbestos
case, Liberty Mutual actually attempted to limit its liability to third party tort victims through a
settlement agreement entered into with another asbestos company, Reilly-Benton Company, Inc.,
which attempt was rejected. In doing so, the Louisiana’s Fourth Circuit in Courville v. Lamorak Ins.
Co., held:

The plain language of La. Rev. Stat. 22:1262 is clear: insurers and insured cannot

retroactively rescind or annul policy contracts by agreement post-occurrence.

Nonetheless, the 2013 settlement agreement at issue in this case essentially rescinded

or annulled policy contracts for injuries sustained years ago. Accordingly, under

Louisiana public policy, the settlement agreement is not enforceable against the

third-party tort victim in this case, i.e., the plaintiff.””

Thus, while Hopeman may no longer have any rights under the Liberty Mutual CGL policies,
Creditors herein do still have rights to pursue Liberty Mutual. Under Louisiana law, a tort victim’s
cause of action accrues at the time of the "substantial injury producing exposures giving rise to

plaintiffs' claims.”"® Once these substantive rights are conferred against the insurer, they become

vested property right that may not be constitutionally divested."

“BR Doc. 8, Declaration of Christopher Lascell at Paragraph 34.

*Courville v. Lamorak Ins. Co., 2020-0073 (La.App. 4 Cir. 05/27/20), 301 So.3d 557,
writ denied, 20-791 (La. 10/14/20), 302 So.3d 1121.

"Courville v. Lamorak Ins. Co., 2020-0073 (La. App. 4 Cir. 05/27/20); 301 So. 3d 557,
560.

BCole v. Celotex Corporation, 599 So.2d 1058, 1063 (La. 1992).

“Id.

-6-
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While it is expected that Hopeman will attempt to retract the representations it has made to
this Honorable Court regarding its lack of a property interest in the Liberty Mutual CGL policies,
out of an abundance of caution, Creditors herein submit that even if Hopeman had not released its
rights to the Liberty Mutual CGL policies and had included these policies in its Schedule of Assets,
an extension of the stay as to Liberty Mutual would still not warranted as the claims of Creditors
herein have no risk of depleting the CGL policies.

I1. Even if Hopeman still had rights to the Liberty Mutual CGL policies, which it admits
it does not, Creditors’ claims have no risk of depleting the CGL policies

Hopeman’s entire basis for extending the stay to non-debtor insurers is an argument that
allowing such claims would deplete the insurance. Hopeman, however, offered absolutely no support
for its attorney argument that such a risk exists, especially as to the Liberty Mutual CGL policies.
As noted above, the Liberty Mutual CGL policies are no longer an asset of Hopeman. Nonetheless,
even if the Liberty Mutual CGL policies were an asset of Hopeman, the Creditors’ claims cannot
deplete the Liberty Mutual CGL policies. As will be explained below, the claims of Creditors herein
against Liberty Mutual arise under the CGL policies because the exposures from Hopeman occurred
from Hopeman’s ongoing contracting activities.

A. Creditors’ Decedents Were Exposed to Asbestos from Hopeman’s Contracting

Operations at Avondale Shipyards in Louisiana, Creditors’ Decedents Died in
Louisiana, and Their Cases are Pending in Louisiana.

The Creditors are the surviving family members of individuals who developed and died from

mesothelioma following exposure to asbestos during Hopeman’s contracting operations at Avondale
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Shipyards in Louisiana, and who may assert direct action claims against Hopeman’s primary liability
insurer, Liberty Mutual, pursuant to Louisiana’s direct action statute.”

Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann Ragusa Primeaux, and Stephanie Jean Ragusa
Connors are the surviving spouse and children of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr.*! Prior to his death from
mesothelioma, Mr. Ragusa filed suit in Louisiana seeking damages for his injuries caused by his
exposure to asbestos while working at, among other places, Avondale Shipyards in Louisiana.”> As
a result of his exposure to asbestos, Mr. Ragusa developed mesothelioma from which he died in
Louisiana.”® Following Mr. Ragusa’s death, Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann Ragusa
Primeaux, and Stephanie Jean Ragusa Connors filed a Fourth Supplemental and Amending
Complaint substituting themselves as Plaintiffs, and asserting any and all survival and wrongful
death claims to which they are entitled.** The Ragusa family’s case is currently pending before the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana.

Mr. Ragusa testified that he worked as an employee of Avondale Shipyards from September
12, 1975 to March 29, 1979 as a crane operator and hooker in the Main yard,” and that he was

exposed to asbestos at Avondale Shipyards while working on the Zapata rig.** Mr. Ragusa testified

2La. R.S. § 22:1269.

2'Exhibit 1, Marriage Certificate of Maxine and Frank Ragusa; Exhibit 2, Birth Certificate
of Valerie Ann Ragusa Primeaux; Exhibit 3, Birth Certificate of Stephanie Jean Ragusa Connors.

2Exhibit 47, Petition for Damages in Ragusa.

#Exhibit 5, Deposition of Gerard Baril (02/28/2023) at pp. 33-35; Exhibit 6, Declaration
of Gerard Baril at 43, and Declaration Exhibit A, Expert Report at pp. 16-17, 27-28, 33-34;
Exhibit 7, Deposition of Dr. Stephen Terry Kraus (02/23/2023) at p. 74; Exhibit 8, Affidavit of
Dr. Stephen Terry Kraus at q 5, 9, 13 and Affidavit Exhibit A, Expert Report at 44, 48, 52;
Exhibit 9, Deposition of Dr. Rodney J. Landreneau (03/03/2023) at pp. 51-52; Exhibit 10, Death
Certificate of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr.

2Exhibit 48, Fourth Supplemental and Amending Complaint in Ragusa.

»Exhibit 4, Deposition of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr. (09/28/2021) at pp. 124-125.

2Exhibit 4, Deposition of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr. (09/28/2021) at p. 128.

-8-
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that he was required to go into the living quarters of the Zapata rig where Hopeman was cutting
wallboards with skilsaws.”” Mr. Ragusa testified that he was exposed to asbestos from Hopeman’s
cutting of wallboard on the Zapata rig.”® Mr. Ragusa testified that Hopeman’s cutting of the
wallboard caused fibers to fly everywhere because there was no protection of any kind on
Hopeman’s skilsaws.” Mr. Ragusa testified that he was regularly around Hopeman’s cutting of the
wallboards for five days a week, and that he would work within five to ten feet of Hopeman.*® As
a result of his exposure to asbestos from Hopeman, Mr. Ragusa developed mesothelioma, from
which he died.”!

Janet Rivet and Kayla Rivet are the surviving spouse and child of Tommy Rivet.** Prior to
his death from mesothelioma, Mr. Rivet filed suit in Louisiana seeking damages for his injuries
caused by his exposure to asbestos from the work of his father and brothers at Avondale Shipyards
in Louisiana.” As a result of his exposure to asbestos, Mr. Rivet developed mesothelioma from

which he died in Louisiana.** Following Mr. Rivet’s death, Janet Rivet and Kayla Rivet filed a First

7Exhibit 4, Deposition of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr. (09/28/2021) at pp. 129-131.

*Exhibit 4, Deposition of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr. (09/28/2021) at p. 30.

»“Exhibit 4, Deposition of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr. (09/28/2021) at p. 31.

*Exhibit 4, Deposition of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr. (09/28/2021) at pp. 131-132, 139.

3'Exhibit 5, Deposition of Gerard Baril (02/28/2023) at pp. 33-35; Exhibit 6, Declaration
of Gerard Baril at 93, and Declaration Exhibit A, Expert Report at pp. 16-17, 27-28, 33-34;
Exhibit 7, Deposition of Dr. Stephen Terry Kraus (02/23/2023) at p. 74; Exhibit 8, Affidavit of
Dr. Stephen Terry Kraus at q 5, 9, 13 and Affidavit Exhibit A, Expert Report at 44, 48, 52;
Exhibit 9, Deposition of Dr. Rodney J. Landreneau (03/03/2023) at pp. 51-52.; Exhibit 10, Death
Certificate of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr.

32Exhibit 11, Marriage Certificate of Janet and Tommy Rivet; Exhibit 12, Birth Certificate
of Kayla Rivet.

3Exhibit 49, Petition for Damages in Rivet.

**Exhibit 17, Deposition of Gerard Baril (09/15/2023) at pp. 34-35, 68-69; Exhibit 18,
Deposition of Dr. Stephen Terry Kraus (09/20/2023) at pp. 73-74; Exhibit 19, Deposition of Dr.
Rodney J. Landreneau (09/18/2023) at pp. 44-45; Exhibit 20, Death Certificate of Tommy Rivet.

9.
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Supplemental and Amending Complaint substituting themselves as Plaintiffs, and asserting any and
all survival and wrongful death claims to which they are entitled.”” The Rivet family’s case is
currently pending before the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana.

Tommy Rivet was exposed to asbestos while living with his father, Libby Rivet, Sr., and
brothers, Lipton Rivet and Libby Rivet, Jr. Tommy Rivet testified that his father, Libby Rivet, Sr.,
worked at Avondale Shipyards, and that he lived with his father when his father worked at Avondale
Shipyards.*® According to Libby Rivet, Sr.’s Avondale Shipyards personnel records, he worked at
Avondale Shipyards from May 18, 1942 to June 21, 1971.°7 Tommy testified that his brothers, Libby
and Lipton, also worked at Avondale Shipyards, and that he shared a bedroom with his brother,
Libby Jr., when Libby Jr. worked at Avondale Shipyards.*®

Tommy Rivet testified that his father would come home from Avondale Shipyards covered
in a white substance, and that his father would wear his dirty work clothes until he took a bath and
went to bed.”” Tommy testified that “[t]he washing machine was right on the side the living room,”
that the family’s laundry was washed once or twice a day, and that he would be in the area when the
laundry was being washed.* Furthermore, Tommy testified that before he started to go to school,
he would stay with his mother and sister in the washroom when they did the laundry.*’ Tommy’s

sister, Brenda Rivet LeBlanc, testified that her father worked at Avondale Shipyards as a burner and

»Exhibit 50, First Supplemental and Amending Complaint in Rivet.
*Exhibit 13, Deposition of Tommy Rivet (08/22/2022) at pp. 13-14.
7Exhibit 14, Avondale Shipyards Personnel Records of Libby Rivet, Sr.
*¥Exhibit 13, Deposition of Tommy Rivet (08/22/2022) at pp.13-14.
*Exhibit 13, Deposition of Tommy Rivet (08/22/2022) at pp. 14-15.
“Exhibit 13, Deposition of Tommy Rivet (08/22/2022) at pp. 19-21.
“Exhibit 13, Deposition of Tommy Rivet (08/22/2022) at pp. 139-140.

-10-
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a fitter, and that he worked on a lot of Navy ships.*> Mrs. LeBlanc testified that her father came
home with dirty work clothes, and that he would be covered in white dust from head to toe.*
Furthermore, Mrs. LeBlanc testified that her brothers’ work clothing from Avondale Shipyards
would be dirty as well.** Mrs. LeBlanc testified that Tommy assisted with the laundry, and that even
when he was not doing the laundry, he would be in the area.”> Mrs. LeBlanc testified that they would
shake out the laundry, and the clothing was always full of white dust.*® Similarly, Tommy’s brother,
Libby Rivet, testified that Tommy would sometimes wash his work clothes,*” and that Tommy would
have washed his work clothes when he worked at Avondale Shipyards.*®

Libby Rivet, Jr. confirmed that he worked at Avondale Shipyards, and testified that he
worked around the workers installing wallboards at Avondale Shipyards.* Libby testified that the
wallboard work was dusty, and that the dust from that work would get onto his clothes.*® Libby also
testified that he had to clean up after the workers installing wallboards in the living quarters, which
created dust.’' Libby testified that he would be dusty from head to toe after working at Avondale
Shipyards.” Furthermore, Libby testified that he worked with his father at Avondale Shipyards.>

Libby testified that he saw his father working in the engine rooms and living quarters at Avondale

“Exhibit 15, Deposition of Brenda Rivet LeBlanc (4/21/23) at pp. 11, 38.
“Exhibit 15, Deposition of Brenda Rivet LeBlanc (4/21/23) at pp. 11, 43.
“Exhibit 15, Deposition of Brenda Rivet LeBlanc (4/21/23) at p. 22.
“Exhibit 15, Deposition of Brenda Rivet LeBlanc (4/21/23) at pp. 40-42.
“Exhibit 15, Deposition of Brenda Rivet LeBlanc (4/21/23) at pp. 21-22.
“Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at p. 62.

“Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at p. 69.

“Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at pp. 13, 51-52.
*’Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at pp. 55-56.
s'Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at pp. 122-123.
*2Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at p. 122.

>Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at p. 71.

-11-
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Shipyards, and that his father would have been exposed to the same materials as he was when he
worked at Avondale Shipyards.* Libby testified that his father would be dusty from head to toe after
working at Avondale Shipyards.” Libby also testified that he saw his brother Lipton working at
Avondale Shipyards.® As a result of his exposure to asbestos from Hopeman, Tommy Rivet
developed mesothelioma, from which he died.”’

Erica Dandry Constanza and Monica Dandry Hallner are the surviving children of Michael
Dandry, Jr.*® According to Mr. Dandry’s Avondale Shipyards personnel records, he worked at
Avondale Shipyards from June 1, 1971 to August 15, 1971 as an outside machinist helper.”® As a
result of exposures to asbestos from Hopeman at Avondale Shipyards in Louisiana, Michael Dandry,
Jr. developed mesothelioma from which he died in Louisiana.®® Following Mr. Dandry’s death,
Erica Dandry Constanza and Monica Dandry Hallner filed suit in Louisiana seeking damages for Mr.
Dandry’s development and death from mesothelioma caused by his exposure to asbestos while
employed at Avondale Shipyards in Louisiana.®’ The Constanza case is currently pending before

the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana.

*Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at pp. 115-117.

»Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at p. 122.

*Exhibit 16, Deposition of Libby Rivet (04/20/2023) at p. 94.

’Exhibit 17, Deposition of Gerard Baril (09/15/2023) at pp. 34-35, 68-69; Exhibit 18,
Deposition of Dr. Stephen Terry Kraus (09/20/2023) at pp. 73-74; Exhibit 19, Deposition of Dr.
Rodney J. Landreneau (09/18/2023) at pp. 44-45; Exhibit 20, Death Certificate of Tommy Rivet.

*Exhibit 21, Birth Certificate of Erica Dandry Constanza; Exhibit 22, Birth Certificate of
Monica Dandry Hallner.

»Exhibit 23, Avondale Shipyards Personnel Records of Michael Dandry, Jr.

“Exhibit 32, Death Certificate of Michael Dandry, Jr.; Exhibit 51, Petition for Damages
in Constanza.

S'Exhibit 51, Petition for Damages in Constanza.

-12-
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Avondale Shipyards’ corporate representative Danny Joyce testified that by the early 1960s
Avondale Shipyards’ employees no longer installed asbestos-containing wallboards, and that
Hopeman performed this work for Avondale Shipyards instead.®> Bertram Hopeman testified that
between 1964 and 1977, the wallboards Hopeman was using at Avondale Shipyards were a
composite of both Micarta and Marinite.”> Mr. Hopeman testified that Micarta was manufactured
by Westinghouse.”* Westinghouse’s David Baldwin testified that Westinghouse produced a
decorative laminate called Micarta, which contained a fibrous component made of asbestos.”> Mr.
Baldwin further testified that US Plywood, a buyer of Micarta, would resell Micarta to Hopeman.*
Gary Jenkins, who worked at Avondale Shipyards from 1967 to 2004 and was responsible for
monitoring Hopeman’s work, testified that Hopeman cut and installed Micarta wallboards at
Avondale Shipyards, and that the cutting of the wallboard was a dusty process.”’” Various Hopeman
employees have testified that Hopeman would cut asbestos-containing wallboards while working
side by side with Avondale employees.®® William Booth testified that he cut wallboards for Hopeman
using a regular Skil-saw, that the cutting of the boards would release a powder into the air, and this

was a very dusty process.®” Mr. Booth testified that Hopeman employees would cut the wallboards

2Exhibit 24, Corporate Deposition of Huntington Ingalls (through Danny Joyce)
(8/24/23) at pp. 194-196.

“Exhibit 25, Deposition of Bertram Hopeman (9/22/14) at pp. 41, 56.

“Exhibit 25, Deposition of Bertram Hopeman (9/22/14) at p. 100.

%Exhibit 26, Deposition of David Baldwin (09/06/90) at pp. 12-14.

“Exhibit 26, Deposition of David Baldwin (09/06/90) at p. 46.

“’Exhibit 27, Deposition of Gary Jenkins (08/10/11) at pp. 13, 31-32, 34, 95.

%Exhibit 28, Deposition of Kenneth Wood (10/22/91) at p. 72; Exhibit 29, Deposition of
Morgan Joseph Bourgeois (11/01/91) at pp. 34-36; Exhibit 30, Deposition of Bertram Hopeman

(4/22/92) at pp. 15, 66, 131.
“Exhibit 31, Deposition of William Booth (08/31/94) at pp. 28-29, 44-46.

13-
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aboard vessels, wherever they happened to be working, and that there were no dust control measures
used.”
B. Payments By Liberty to the Creditors in the Louisiana Direct Action Lawsuits

Cannot Deplete the Policies Because The Aggregate Limits in the Liberty
Mutual CGL Policies Do Not Apply to the Claims of Creditors Herein

Hopeman has already admitted that Liberty Mutual issued primary-layer insurance policies
providing asbestos-related liability insurance to Hopeman from 1937 through 1984.”" A review of
the general liability policies Liberty Mutual issued to Hopeman show that the aggregate limits in the
policies only applied to “products claims” or “completed operations”, not to claims for exposures
sustained from Hopeman’s contracting activities (i.e. operations claims). Because the claims by the
Creditors herein are operations claims and not products claims or completed operations claims, there
is no risk for any of the claims to deplete the policies even if Hopeman did still have rights under the
policies. As set forth above, the exposures occurred during Hopeman’s contracting activities while
Hopeman was handling the asbestos products. Thus, they are operations claims.

This is in line with Courts interpreting these sort of policies. In Am. Employers. v. Eagle,
Inc., the U.S. Fifth Circuit interpreting similar CGL policies acknowledged that the “products
hazard” and “completed operations” claims which arise from exposure after the operations have been
completed are subject to aggregate limits while the other operations or contracting claims arising
from exposure during the insured’s active handling of the asbestos products are not subject to

aggregate limits.”” Similarly, the U.S. Fourth Circuit recognized when examining similar policy

“Exhibit 31, Deposition of William Booth (08/31/94) at pp. 44-46.

"BR Doc. 8 at p. 11.

2Am. Employers. v. Eagle, Inc., 122 Fed.Appx. 700, 701-702 (5" Cir. 2004)k; See also
Travelers v. McDermott Inc., 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 15339, *5-6 (E.D. La. 2004)

-14-
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language, while “completed operations claims” and “products hazards claims” may be subject to the
aggregate limits, there are no aggregate limits as it applies to “operations claims” which are claims
of exposures occurring during the insureds ongoing activities.”” The type of claims that fall within
the “completed operations” hazard are those claims for bodily injury where the claimant was injured
by asbestos attributable to an operation that the insured completed prior to the start of the policy
period.” The Louisiana Supreme Court has made clear that under Louisiana law the bodily injury
which triggers coverage is the exposure to the harmful substances causing injury.” Thus, as set forth
above, the bodily injury to Creditors’s decedents resulted from exposures sustained through
Hopeman’s contracting activities involving the cutting and installation of asbestos products, which
exposures occurred during its operations during the policy period as opposed to occurring after the
operations were completed.

For example, Liberty CGL Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-189R, which provided coverage from
January 1, 1969 to January, 1970 provides that Liberty Mutual shall “pay on behalf of the insured
all sums which the insured shall become legally obligated to pay as damages because of Coverage
A. bodily injury or Coverage B. property damage to which this policy applies, caused by an
occurrence....””® The limits of liability section applicable to Coverage A provides that “the total
liability of the company for all damages because (1) all bodily injury included within the completed

operations hazard and (2) all bodily injury included within the products hazard shall not exceed the

BGeneral Ins. Co. of Am. v. United States Fire Ins. Co., 886 F.3d 346, 350 (4™ Cir. 2018)

“General Ins. Co. of Am. v. United States Fire Ins. Co., 886 F.3d 346, 350 (4™ Cir. 2018)
(citing Wallace & Gale, 385 F.3d 820 (4" Cir. 2004)).

»Cole v. Celotex, 599 So0.2d 1058, 1072 (La. 1992).

"Exhibit 37, Policy No. LGI-121-010461-189R at pp. 1, 35.

-15-
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limit of bodily injury liability stated in the declarations as ‘aggregate’.”””” Products hazard is defined
as bodily injury “arising out of the named insured’s products” but only if the bodily injury occurs
“after physical possession of such products has been relinquished to others.”” Also, the completed
operations hazard is defined as bodily injury “arising out of operations...but only if the bodily
injury...occurs after such operations have been completed or abandoned and occurs away from
premises owned by or rented to the named insured.”” Thus, the aggregate limits set forth in Policy
No. LGI-121-010461-189R do not apply to the sort of operations by which Hopeman exposed the
Creditors’ decedents because the exposures occurred at the time Hopeman was performing its
contracting activities and handling the products as opposed to exposures that occurred after
Hopeman’s work was completed. Creditors have referenced the foregoing specific policy only as an
example for the Court. However, Creditors have attached to this opposition general liability policies
issued by Liberty Mutual to Hopeman providing coverage from January 1, 1965 through January 1,
1978, which similarly provided that the aggregate limits of those policies do not apply to the sort of

operations by which Hopeman exposed the Creditors’ decedents to asbestos.*® These policies were

7Exhibit 37, Policy No. LGI-121-010461-189R at p. 36.

"Exhibit 37, Policy No. LGI-121-010461-189R at p. 37.

”Exhibit 37, Policy No. LGI-121-010461-189R at p. 37.

%Exhibit 33, Policy No. LPI- 121-010461-185R at pp. 1, 3, 7; Exhibit 34, Policy No.
LP1-121-010461-186R at pp. 1, 3, 7; Exhibit 35, Policy No. LG1-121-010461-187R at pp. 1-3, 7;
Exhibit 36, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-188R at pp. 1-3, 7; Exhibit 37, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-
189R at pp. 1, 35-37; Exhibit 38, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-180R at pp. 1, 41-42; Exhibit 39,
Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-181R at pp. 1, 38-40; Exhibit 40, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-182R at
pp. 1, 32-34; Exhibit 41, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-183R at pp. 1, 35-37; Exhibit 42, Policy No.
Lgl-121-010461-184R at pp. 1, 45-47; Exhibit 43, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-185R at pp. 1, 38-40;
Exhibit 44, Policy No. Lgl-121-010461-186R at pp. 1, 40-42; Exhibit 45, Policy No. Lgl-121-
010461-187R at pp. 1, 30-32.

-16-
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produced by Hopeman in response to a subpoena issued to it in a previous asbestos case, and were
authenticated by Hopeman’s National Counsel.”'

Not surprisingly, Hopeman’s motion is silent as to the actual language of the Liberty Mutual
CGL policies and offers no support for an argument that Louisiana direct action claims could reduce
the bankruptcy estate of Hopeman. Because the aggregate limits in Liberty Mutual’s policies do not
apply to the sort of claims at issue in the Louisiana direct action suits of Claimants herein, the
Liberty Mutual CGL policies cannot be depleted by the Creditors’ direct action claims, and such
direct action claims against Liberty Mutual will not reduce Hopeman’s estate to the detriment of any
other creditor.

I11. Louisiana Claimants Have a Right to Pursue Direct Action Claims Against Non-Debtor
Insurers

A. Louisiana’s Direct Action Statute permits Louisiana tort victims to pursue
direct action claims against insurers of insureds that have filed for bankruptcy.

Because Hopeman has filed for bankruptcy, Hopeman is under the protection of an automatic
stay pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 362, and the Creditors may not pursue their claims against Hopeman
at this time; however, Louisiana law grants the Creditors the right to pursue a direct action claim
against Hopeman’s primary liability insurer, Liberty Mutual, without even naming Hopeman as a
Defendant. Hopeman has already admitted that Liberty Mutual issued primary-layer insurance

policies providing asbestos-related liability insurance to Hopeman from 1937 through 1984.%

$IExhibit 46, August 9, 2011 Letter Forwarding Hopeman’s Response to Notice of 1442
Deposition and Subpoena Duces Tecum.
“BR Doc. 8 at p. 11.

-17-
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The U.S. Supreme Court has recognized that pursuant to Louisiana law the direct action
statute creates “a separate and distinct cause of action against the insurer which an injured party may
elect in lieu of his action against the tortfeasor.”® Furthermore, the U.S. Fourth Circuit has likewise
recognized that under Louisiana’s direct action statute “a plaintiff may sue a tortfeasor's liability
insurer without joining the tortfeasor as a defendant and establish both the insured's liability and the
insurer's obligation in a single suit. See La. Stat. Ann. § 22:1269(B)....”* The Fourth Circuit noted
that “the ‘key feature’ of a direct action is ‘the plaintiff's ability to skip suing the [tortfeasor] and sue
directly his insurance carrier.””® Additionally, the U.S. Fifth Circuit has explained that:

The Louisiana Direct Action Statute explicitly states that when an insured is in

bankruptcy, an injured person or his survivors may bring an action directly against

the insurer without joining the insured. La. Rev. Stat. § 22:1269(B)(1) (Supp. 2012).

We have held a direct action claimant may assert waiver even where the insured is

not a party to the litigation and has received a discharge in bankruptcy. Duffy, 47 F.3d

at 149-50; F.D.L.C. v. Duffy, 835 F. Supp. 307, 308, n.1 (E.D. La. 1993), aff'd, 47

F.3d 146 (5th Cir. 1995) ("Duffy received a discharge in bankruptcy, which relieved

him of any potential liability . . . . Hence the sole defendant remaining in this

proceeding is Duffy's alleged insurer").*

The Fifth Circuit also explained that “The purpose of Louisiana's Direct Action statute is to

safeguard the rights of injured persons,” and that it “creates a ‘contractual relationship which inures

SLumbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert, 348 U.S. 48, 51, 75 S.Ct. 151, 153-54, 99 L.Ed.
59, 63 (1954) (citing West v. Monroe Bakery, 217 La. 189, 46 So. 2d 122; Jackson v. State Farm
Mut. Automobile Ins. Co., 211 La. 19, 29 So. 2d 177)).

“Gateway Residences at Exch., LLC v. Ill. Union Ins. Co., 917 F.3d 269, 272 (4th Cir.
2019).

®1d. at 273 (quoting Kong v. Allied Prof'l Ins. Co., 750 F.3d 1295, 1300, 1300-01 (11th
Cir. 2014)).

%Sosebee v. Steadfast Ins. Co., 701 F.3d 1012, 1021 (5th Cir. 2012).

-18-
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to the benefit of any and every person who might be negligently injured by the insured as completely

as if such injured person had been specifically named in the policy.”*’

The Southern District of New York has stated “in Louisiana, tort plaintiffs such as Bowman

‘have a substantive right of action against the insurer of [a] debtor [such as AFS], and there is no

necessity of naming, or attempting to recover against . . . the debtor....””"*

Also, the Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of Louisiana has stated “The substantive
law of the state of Louisiana law grants persons a right of direct action against the insurers of an

alleged tortfeasor, without the necessity of first bringing an action against the insured or even making

the insured a party to the lawsuit.”®

Louisiana’s Supreme Court has held that the direct action statute created “substantive rights
on third parties to contracts of public liability insurance, which become vested at the moment of the
accident in which they are injured”":

An analysis of our jurisprudence considered by the Appellate Court in reaching its
conclusion discloses that with two exceptions Act 55 of 1930 has been treated
consistently as conferring substantive rights on third parties to contracts of public
liability insurance, which become vested at the moment of the accident in which they
are injured, subject only to such defenses as the tort-feasor himself may legally
interpose. The facts in each case may be different, but save for Howard v. Rowan,
La.App., 154 So. 382, and State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company v.

Y1d. (citing FDIC v. Duffy, 47 F.3d 146, 150 (5™ Cir. 1995) (quoting Shockley v. Sallows,
615 F.2d 233, 238 (5th Cir. 1980))).

BACE Am. Ins. Co. v. Bank of the Ozarks, 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 140541, at *41-42
(S.D.N.Y. Sep. 30, 2014) (quoting Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co., 260 B.R. 769, 795 (Bankr.
M.D. La. 2001)).

¥Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., 260 B.R. 769, 778 (Bankr. M.D.
La. 2001).

“West v. Monroe Bakery, Inc., 217 La. 189, 191, 46 So.2d 122, 123 (1950).

-19-
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Grimmer, D.C., 47 F.Supp. 458, the result has been the same -- the upholding of the
statutorily granted right against the insurer...”'

Furthermore, Louisiana’s Supreme Court has stated that “[t]he Direct Action Statute ‘was enacted
to give special rights to tort victims, not to insureds with contract claims against a defendant.””** The
Louisiana Supreme Court has held that a direct action against an insurer is distinct from the an action
against an insured such that the defenses available to the insurer may be different than those
available to the insured:

The direct action statute provides that the insurer is solidarily liable with its insured.
La. R.S. 22:655B(1). Thus, Louisiana Civil Code article 1801 determines which
defenses are available to the insurer:

A solidary obligor may raise against the obligee defenses that arise from the nature
of the obligation, or that are personal to him, or that are common to all the solidary
obligors. He may not raise a defense that is personal to another solidary obligor.”

In determining which defenses are personal and thus cannot be raised by the insurer,
Louisiana courts distinguish a cause of action from a right of action. Personal
defenses bar "a right of action where a cause of action would otherwise have
existed." Liberty Mutual Ins. Co. v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Ins, Co., 579 So.
2d 1090, 1093 [**10] (La. App. 4th Cir.) (emphasis in original), writ denied, 586 So.
2d 563 (La. 1991).

d.

“2Green v. Auto Club Grp. Ins. Co., 08-2868 (La. 10/28/09); 24 So. 3d 182, 184 (quoting
Cacamo v. Liberty Mutual Ins. Co., 99-3479 (La. 6/30/00), 764 So. 2d 41, 43).

%Descant v. Adm'rs of the Tulane Educ. Fund, 93-3098 (La. 07/05/94); 639 So.2d 246,
249-50.

*Id. at 250.
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The differentiation in Louisiana law between direct action claims against an insurer and
claims against an insured has also been recognized by the U.S. Supreme Court, which has explained
that:

[T]he Louisiana courts have differentiated between actions brought by an injured
party against the insurer alone and those brought against either the tortfeasor alone
or together with the insurer. In the former action, the insurer is foreclosed from
asserting defenses such as coverture, normally available to the tortfeasor. Edwards
v. Royalty Indemnity Co., 182 La. 171, 161 So. 191. Similarly, the insurer is severely
restricted in advancing technical defenses based upon the terms of the policy, such
as a failure of notice, when the injured party brings a direct action. Jackson v. State
Farm Mut. Automobile Ins. Co., 211 La. 19, 29 So. 2d 177. While either type of
action encompasses proof of the tortfeasor's negligence, in the separate suit against
the insurer a plaintiff must also establish liability under the policy. The Louisiana
courts have characterized the statute as creating a separate and distinct cause of
action against the insurer which an injured party may elect in lieu of his action
against the tortfeasor. West v. Monroe Bakery, 217 La. 189, 46 So. 2d 122; Jackson
v. State Farm Mut. Automobile Ins. Co., supra.”

Furthermore, the U.S. Supreme Court held that an insured is not an indispensable party in
adirect action claim under Louisiana law because Louisiana “has created an optional right to proceed
directly against the insurer” and that “a complete disposition of the entire claim may be made in this
one action, without injustice to any of the participants™® In Lumbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert,
the U.S. Supreme Court stated:

Petitioner next asserts that the tortfeasor is an indispensable party to this litigation,

and that failure to join her as a defendant deprives the federal court of jurisdiction.

Clearly under the Louisiana statute and practice the argument has no merit. And the

circumstances which have led the federal courts to findings of indispensability are

not present here. In Shields v. Barrow, 17 How. 130, 139, indispensable parties were

defined as "Persons who not only have an interest in the controversy, but an interest
of such a nature that a final decree cannot be made without either affecting that

SLumbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert, 348 U.S. 48, 51, 75 S.Ct. 151, 153-54, 99 L.Ed.
59, 63 (1954).

%Lumbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert, 348 U.S. 48, 51-52, 75 S.Ct. 151, 154, 99 L.Ed.
59, 64 (1954).

21-
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interest, or leaving the controversy in such a condition that its final termination may
be wholly inconsistent with equity and good conscience.” The tortfeasor in a
Louisiana direct action against the insurer is not such a person. The state has created
an optional right to proceed directly against the insurer; by bringing the action against
petitioner, respondent has apparently abandoned her action against the tortfeasor. See
Miller v. Commercial Standard Ins. Co., 199 La. 515, 526, 6 So. 2d 646, 649. Thus
a complete disposition of the entire claim may be made in this one action, without
injustice to any of the participants.”’

B. Federal and State Courts Interpreting Louisiana’s Direct Action Statute Have
Held that Direct Action Claims against the Insurer of a Bankrupt Insured Do
Not Violate the Automatic Stay

In Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., the Bankruptcy Court for the Middle
District of Louisiana considered whether direct action claims under the Louisiana direct action
statute should be stayed pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(1) and 362(a)(3)—the same provisions relied
upon by Hopeman—and held that those sections do not apply to Louisiana direct action claims.”
Similarly, the Southern District of New York has stated that “the automatic stay provision in 11
U.S.C. § 362 does not apply to prevent direct actions against insurers of a debtor in "direct action
states such as Louisiana," because in these circumstances the tort plaintiff is seeking to recover
against the insurer and not against the debtor or its property.” The Bankruptcy Court for the Middle
District of Louisiana has explained that:

The automatic stay prevents: the commencement or continuation of suits or

proceedings to "recover a claim against the debtor;" the enforcement of a judgment

against the debtor or property of the estate, and; any act to obtain possession or
control over property of the estate. In most states outside Louisiana (the Court

71d.

“Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., 260 B.R. 769, 795 (Bankr. M.D.
La. 2001).

®ACE Am. Ins. Co. v. Bank of the Ozarks, 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 140541, at *41-42
(S.D.N.Y. Sep. 30, 2014) (citing Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., 260 B.R.
769 (Bankr. M.D. La. 2001).
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believes) where a suit to recover insurance funds has not been canceled, or, if
commenced, has not been reduced to judgment, the plaintiff, because the debtor must
be a named party in the action or must be cast in judgment before an action will lie,
will be stayed from commencing or proceeding with a suit that (ultimately) seeks a
judgment that can be enforced against the insurance company. Even if the debtor is
named only nominally, such suits are stayed under 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(1) because that
provision prevents the continuation or commencement, of suit to recover on a claim
against the debtor. Such a suit would seek to impose liability against the debtor, and
thus, be an attempt to recover a claim against the debtor. Because the debtor
necessarily must be a party, the suit is stayed. So, within states where there is a
requirement that the debtor/insured be a party to the action, the action, because of the
express terminology of § 362(a)(1) and (2) will be stayed by the commencement of
the bankruptcy case.

In Louisiana, however, tort victims have a substantive right of action against the
insurer of the debtor, and there is no necessity of naming, or attempting to
recover against, if even nominally, the debtor. 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(1) does not
seem to apply.'”

While Hopeman has not offered argument under 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(2), in Landry the Court
held that 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(2) also did not apply because funds payable to direct action plaintiffs
would not be property of the estate:

the policy's status as property of the estate is somewhat misleading. As discussed, the
debtor's rights and equitable interests under the policy are property of the estate. A
tort plaintiff is not suing to enforce the debtor's policy rights, a tort plaintiff wishes
to enforce the judgment against the proceeds of that policy, in other words, funds
payable by the insurer on account of the insurer's contractual assumption of liability
via its insurance policy with the debtor. Such funds are not property of the estate, and
thus, 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(2) would not apply.'"

The Court further held that the:
same rationale extends to acts aimed at possession or control of property of the

estate under 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(3). A tort plaintiff is not trying to possess the
debtor's policy rights, nor is the tort plaintiff attempting to control the debtor's policy

"Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., 260 B.R. 769, 795 (Bankr. M.D.
La. 2001) (emphasis added).
0.
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rights. By virtue of its substantive right of action against the insurer, the tort plaintiff
is merely seeking to recover that which is not property of the estate.'”

The U.S. Fifth Circuit has stated that "[t]he plain language of the statute evinces Louisiana's
intent for the insolvency of the insured not to "release the insurer from the payment of damages" to
injured parties" and that the statute "is crafted to protect Louisiana's vital interest in liability
insurance that covers injuries to people in the state."'” Of note, the U.S. Supreme Court has held
that even where an insurance contract expressly prohibited direct actions before a determination of
the insured's liability, Louisiana's interest in protecting injured parties under its direct action statute
overrode another State's interest in enforcing its contract rules.'® The U.S. Supreme Court explained
that:

Louisiana's direct action statute is not a mere intermeddling in affairs beyond her

boundaries which are no concern of hers. Persons injured or killed in Louisiana are

most likely to be Louisiana residents, and even if not, Louisiana may have to care for

them. Serious injuries may require treatment in Louisiana homes or hospitals by

Louisiana doctors. The injured may be destitute. They may be compelled to call upon

friends, relatives, or the public for help. Louisiana has manifested its natural interest

in the injured by providing remedies for recovery of damages. It has a similar interest

in policies of insurance which are designed to assure ultimate payment of such

damages. Moreover, Louisiana courts in most instances provide the most convenient

forum for trial of these cases.'”

Louisiana courts interpreting Louisiana’s direct action statute have also held that an

automatic stay under 11 U.S.C. § 362 in favor of an insured does not stay claims against the insurer:

102]d'

%Sosebee v. Steadfast Ins. Co., 701 F.3d 1012, 1022 (5th Cir. 2012) (citing Watson v.
Emp'rs Liab. Assur. Corp., 348 U.S. 66, 73,75 S. Ct. 166, 99 L. Ed. 74 (1954)).

"“Watson v. Emp'rs Liab. Assur. Corp., 348 U.S. 66, 72-73, 75 S. Ct. 166, 99 L. Ed. 74
(1954)); see also Sosebee v. Steadfast Ins. Co., 701 F.3d 1012, 1022 (5th Cir. 2012).

" Watson v. Emp'rs Liab. Assurance Corp., 348 U.S. 66, 72, 75 S.Ct. 166, 170, 99 L.Ed.
74, 82 (1954).
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Defendant argues that the trial court erred in denying the defendant's motion for a
stay of proceedings, since actions against its insured were automatically stayed
pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.A. § 362(a). Defendant alleges the stay
should have applied to it also because its liability under the endorsement is that of a
surety.

The protection of the automatic stay provision of § 362(a) does not apply to
co-debtors. Wedgeworth v. Fibreboard Corp., 706 F.2d 541 (5th Cir. 1983). The
obligation of a surety toward a creditor is to pay him if the debtor does not satisfy the
debt. La.Civ. Code art. 3045. A surety may not assert exceptions which are personal
to the debtor. La.Civ. Code art. 3060. Bankruptcy is a "personal defense" within the
meaning of art. 3060; therefore, the surety is prohibited from opposing the creditor
by use of this exception. Simmons v. Clark, 64 So.2d 520 (La.App. 1st Cir. 1953).

The Louisiana Statute, LSA-R.S. 22:655, giving a plaintiff the right of direct action

against an insurer, applies even if proceedings have been stayed against the insured

because of bankruptcy. 706 F.2d at 547."%

Louisiana creditors may pursue claims against the insurers of bankrupt entities because
Louisiana law grants injured parties a substantive right to sue the insurance company on a
tortfeasors’ insurance policy as a third party beneficiary to the insurance contract.'”” Furthermore,

for exposures occurring prior to 1989, Louisiana creditors have an unqualified right to pursue claims

against insurers without having to fit their claims within the enumerated reasons set forth in La. R.S.

"%Aaron v. Bankers & Shippers Ins. Co., 475 So.2d 379, 381-82 (La. App. 1 Cir. 1985).

"West v. Monroe Bakery, Inc., 217 La. 189, 46 So.2d 122 (1950); Leviere v. Williams,
2002-1816 (La.App. 4 Cir. 1/17/03), 844 So.2d 32, 36, writ denied, 2003-1149 (La. 6/20/03), 847
So.2d 1236 (“The court noted that although Carver was not an insurer liable to the plaintiff under
R.S. 22:655, ‘it did undertake an obligation for the benefit of third parties like plaintiff, La. C.C.
art. 1890, 4 and plaintiff therefore had a right of action....” Id. at 721. Thus, the law of this circuit
supports a cause of action to enforce insurance contracts by third party beneficiaries to those
contracts. La. R.S. 22:655 establishes that an injured party is a third party beneficiary to an
insurance policy. The plaintiff therefore has a right of action against Progressive and may
proceed against Progressive...”).

25-
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22:1269." Under Louisiana law "[o]nce a party's cause of action accrues, it becomes a vested
property right that may not be constitutionally divested."'"”

IV. Hopeman Has Failed to Meet Its Burden of Proof that the Stay Should Be Extended to
Non-Debtor Insurers Under Section 362(a)(1), 362(a)(3), or 11 U.S.C. § 105(a)

Hopeman is seeking a final order staying parties from prosecuting asbestos-related actions
against non-debtor insurers or from commencing new actions or proceedings against these insurers
pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(1), 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(3), and/or 11 U.S.C. § 105(a).""® Hopeman
has failed to meet its burden to show that the automatic stay should be extended under 11 U.S.C. §
362(a)(1), 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(3), or 11 U.S.C. § 105(a) as to the Louisiana direct action claims,
especially those claims against Hopeman’s primary liability insurer, Liberty Mutual, and the
automatic stay should not be extended to apply to the direct action claims against Liberty Mutual.

A. Hopeman Has Failed to Meet Its Burden of Proof that the Stay Should Be
Extended Under Section 362(a)(1) or 362(a)(3)

“Extending the automatic stay or issuing an injunction for non-debtors contravenes a basic
and compelling principle of federal bankruptcy law”'"", and “[t]he burden of proof to show that the

automatic stay is applicable to a non-debtor is on the party invoking the stay.”''> As stated by the

"%Marchand v. Asbestos Defendants, 10-1650 (La. App. 4 Cir. 7/21/10); 44 So.3d 355,
358; Foltmer v. James, 01-1510 (La. App. 4 Cir. 9/12/01); 799 So.2d 545, 548; Marcel v. Delta
Shipbuilding Co., 10-168 (La. App. 4 Cir. 8/4/10); 45 So.3d 634.

' Austin v. Abney Mills, 01-1598 (La. 9/4/02); 824 So.2d 1137, 1145 (citing Cole v.
Celotex, 599 So.2d 1058, 1063 (La. 1992)).

""BR Doc. 7 at pp. 1, 6-12.

"'In re Qimonda Ag, 482 B.R. 879, 895 (Bankr. E.D. Va. 2012) (quoting Vitro v. ACP
Master, Ltd. (In re Vitro), 455 B.R. 571, 581 (Bankr. N.D. Tex. 2011)).

"2[n re Xenon Anesthesia of Tex., PLLC, 510 B.R. 106, 111 (Bankr. S.D. Tex. 2014)
(citing Beran v. World Telemetry, Inc., 747 F. Supp. 2d 719, 723 (S.D. Tex. 2010) (“The party
invoking the stay has the burden to show that it is applicable. See 2 William L. Norton, Jr.,
Norton Bankruptcy Law and Practice § 43:4 (3d ed. Supp. 2010) (noting that in bankruptcy court
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U.S. Fourth Circuit, “[s]Jubsection (a)(1) is generally said to be available only to the debtor, not third
party defendants or co-defendants.”'"”® Furthermore, the Fourth Circuit has explained that this is so
because of the “plain wording of the statute itself''*:

It provides only for an automatic stay of any judicial proceeding "against the debtor."

Section 362(a)(1). The words "applicable to all entities" denotes that the stay

accorded the "debtor" is without limit or exception and that the "debtor" is protected

from the pursuit of actions by any party of any character during the period of the stay.

That insulation, however, belongs exclusively to the "debtor" in bankruptcy. It is to

be noted also that of the remaining subsections of Section 362(a), namely 2, 5, 6, 7,

and 8 (listing the kinds of proceedings stayed), specifically refer to "the debtor," and

that subsections 3 and 4 refer to "the estate of the bankrupt."'"
The Fourth Circuit noted that “[b]y way of comparison, Chapter 13 specifically authorizes the stay
ofactions against co-debtors. 11 U.S.C. § 1301(a). No such shield is provided Chapter 11 co-debtors
by § 362(a).”"'® The Fourth Circuit further noted that “[t]he legislative history of the Act further
supports the premise that the wording of the statute is clear and unambiguous and is not subject to
judicial interference for any purpose”, and that “[t]he notes of the Committee of the Judiciary
recognize the debtor only as the beneficiary of the stay.”"'” Similarly, in the Lynch case relied upon
by the Fourth Circuit in Piccinin, the U.S. Sixth Circuit explained that:

Nothing in the legislative history counsels that the automatic stay should be invoked

in a manner which would advance the interests of some third party, such as the
debtor's co-defendants, rather than the debtor or its creditors. This Court concurs with

proceedings, ‘the party seeking to extend the stay will bear the burden to show that 'unusual
circumstances' exist warranting such an extension of the stay to a nondebtor”).

"A4.H. Robins Co. v. Piccinin, 788 F.2d 994, 999 (4th Cir. 1986) (citing Lynch v.
Johns-Manville Sales Corp., 710 F.2d 1194, 1196-1197 (6th Cir. 1983); Williford v. Armstrong
World Industries, Inc., 715 F.2d 124, 126-27 (4th Cir. 1983)).

"“Williford v. Armstrong World Indus., Inc., 715 F.2d 124, 126 (4th Cir. 1983).

llS]d'

ofd. at 127.

117]d'
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the district court's conclusion that "it would distort congressional purpose to hold that
a third party solvent co-defendant should be shielded against his creditors by a device
intended for the protection of the insolvent debtor" and creditors thereof.'"®

While the Fourth Circuit has held that there are limited cases where the stay may be applied
to non-debtors entities, “there must be ‘unusual circumstances’ and certainly ‘‘something more than
the mere fact that one of the parties to the lawsuit has filed a Chapter 11 bankruptcy must be shown
9¢2119

in order that proceedings be stayed against non-bankrupt parties.

B. Hopeman has failed to establish that this case is one of the limited or unusual
circumstances where a stay should be extended to a non-debtor insurer

Hopeman argues that there are such unusual circumstances in this case, because there is an
identity of interest between itself and the Protected Parties such that 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(1) applies.'*’
Hopeman argues that because “[a]sbestos actions against the Protected Parties will deplete the
Debtor’s insurance coverage”, and that “[a]s such, the asbestos-related actions are tantamount to
claims against the Debtor itself — they will reduce the Debtor’s estate to the detriment of all
creditors.”'*' Hopeman also argues that because asbestos-related actions against the Protected Parties
will diminish assets of the Debtor’s estate, they constitute an infringement of this Court’s exclusive
control over property of the estate, and thus such actions should be stayed pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §

362(a)(3)."*

"Lynch v. Johns-Manville Sales Corp., 710 F.2d 1194, 1197 (6th Cir. 1983) (citing In re
Related Asbestos Cases, 23 B.R. 523, 527 (N.D. Cal. 1982); In re UNR Industries, Inc., 23
B.R.144 (Bankr. N.D. Ill. 1982); Ashworth v. Johns-Manville, et al., Nos. C78-470, C81-1545,
C77-4088, C79-167 (N.D. Ohio Mar. 21, 1983) at 4).

"YA.H. Robins Co. v. Piccinin, 788 F.2d 994, 999 (4th Cir. 1986) (quoting Johns-Manville
Sales Corp., 26 Bankr. 405, 410 (S.D.N.Y. 1983)).

'2BR Doc. 7 at pp. 7-8.

2'BR Doc. 7 at pp. 8-9.

'ZBR Doc. 7 at p. 12.

8-



Case 342324280117 -DI¥c 8®curiledt 07130R2kd EMEREN0 730229 51424RagBDIESE 1\B&IB
Document  Page 29 of 42

However, these are only attorney arguments by Hopeman’s counsel. Hopeman has not
submitted any support for its position that allowing claims by Louisiana claimants against Liberty
Mutual would infringe upon the Debtor’s property or would deplete the Debtor’s insurance coverage.

First, as noted in Section I, supra, Hopeman does not list any of the Liberty Mutual CGL
policies as an asset of its estate.'”’ Thus, the policies under which the Creditors are seeking to pursue
direct action claims against Liberty Mutual are no longer even assets of the estate according to
Hopeman’s own filings in this case. Accordingly, there is no threat that the Louisiana claims would
diminish estate property for this reason alone.

Second, the Creditors’ direct action claims against Liberty Mutual pursuant to the CGL
policies cannot reduce the estate to the detriment of all creditors. Hopeman simply argues that the
direct action claims will reduce the estate without offering any support for such an argument. Any
Louisiana direct action pursued against Liberty Mutual by the Creditors herein cannot deplete
Hopeman'’s estate even if we assume that Hopeman still had rights under the Liberty Mutual CGL
policies. As explained in more detail in Section II, supra, any future payments made by Liberty
Mutual to Creditors pursuant to those CGL policies cannot diminish the policies. This is because the
wording of the Liberty Mutual CGL policies makes clear that the aggregate limits identified in the
Declarations of the policies do not apply to the claims of the Creditors herein. Accordingly, the
Liberty Mutual policies cannot be depleted by the Creditors’ direct action claims against Liberty

Mutual, and such direct action claims against Liberty Mutual will not reduce Hopeman’s estate to

'“BR Doc. 59 at pp. 22-23.
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the detriment of any other creditor. Thus, asbestos-related actions are not tantamount to claims
against Hopeman. In fact, the direct actions claims will have no effect on Hopeman whatsoever.

Third, even if the Hopeman had not released its rights under the Liberty Mutual CGL
policies, the proceeds of those policies would still not be assets of the estate.'** The Bankruptcy
Court for the District of South Carolina has noted that “most courts require, as a starting point, a
debtor to have a direct interest in the proceeds in order for proceeds to qualify as property of the
estate.”'” The U.S. Fifth Circuit has stated that the “overriding question” in determining whether
the proceeds of an insurance policy constitute property of the estate is “whether the debtor would
have a right to receive and keep those proceeds when the insurer paid on a claim.”'** The Fifth
Circuit has explained that:

The overriding question when determining whether insurance proceeds are property

of the estate is whether the debtor would have a right to receive and keep those

proceeds when the insurer paid on a claim. When a payment by the insurer cannot

inure to the debtor's pecuniary benefit, then that payment should neither enhance nor

decrease the bankruptcy estate. In other words, when the debtor has no legally

cognizable claim to the insurance proceeds, those proceeds are not property of the
estate.'”’

Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., 260 B.R. 769, 795 (Bankr. M.D.
La. 2001) (“The policy's status as property of the estate is somewhat misleading. As discussed,
the debtor's rights and equitable interests under the policy are property of the estate. A tort
plaintiff is not suing to enforce the debtor's policy rights, a tort plaintiff wishes to enforce the
judgment against the proceeds of that policy, in other words, funds payable by the insurer on
account of the insurer's contractual assumption of liability via its insurance policy with the
debtor. Such funds are not property of the estate...”).

2[n re Beach First Nat'l Bancshares, Inc., 451 B.R. 406, 409 (Bankr. D.S.C. 2011)
(citing In re CyberMedica, Inc., 280 B.R. 12, 16 (Bankr. D. Mass. 2002).

2In re Edgeworth, 993 F.2d 51, 55-56 (5th Cir. 1993).

[n re Edgeworth, 993 F.2d 51, 55-56 (5th Cir. 1993).
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The Fifth Circuit identified insurance policies whose proceeds are property of the estate as those
including “casualty, collision, life, and fire insurance policies in which the debtor is a beneficiary.”'**
The Fifth Circuit has further stated that “under the typical liability policy, the debtor will not have
a cognizable interest in the proceeds of the policy.”'*” The Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District
of Louisiana has explained that:

In the liability insurance context the debtor has no cognizable claim to the proceeds

paid by an insurer on account of a covered claim. The proceeds are paid to the victim

of the insured's wrongful act. The insured debtor cannot ask the insurance company

to pay him, or determine on its own how the proceeds of the policy should be

distributed, nor can any creditor of the insured seize the proceeds in satisfaction of

a claim not falling within the terms of the insurance contract.'*
The Court held that 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(3) does not apply to Louisiana direct action claims because:
“A tort plaintiff is not trying to possess the debtor's policy rights, nor is the tort plaintiff attempting
to control the debtor's policy rights. By virtue of its substantive right of action against the insurer,
the tort plaintiff is merely seeking to recover that which is not property of the estate.”"*!

Hopeman also argues that asbestos-related actions against the insurers are the exact same
claims as, and are identical and co-extensive to, those claims that have been asserted or may be
asserted against Hopeman, and that such claims are tantamount to claims against the Debtor.
Hopeman’s argument misconstrues the nature of the Creditors’ direct action claims against

Hopeman'’s insurers under Louisiana law. The U.S. Supreme Court has recognized that pursuant to

Louisiana law the direct action statute creates “a separate and distinct cause of action against the

1%]d. at 56.

?Id. at 56.

Landry v. Exxon Pipeline Co. Mendoza Marine, Inc., 260 B.R. 769, 786 (Bankr. M.D.
La. 2001).

B1d. at 784.
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insurer which an injured party may elect in lieu of his action against the tortfeasor.”"** Likewise, the
U.S. Fourth Circuit has recognized that under Louisiana’s direct action statute “a plaintiff may sue
a tortfeasor's liability insurer without joining the tortfeasor as a defendant and establish both the
insured's liability and the insurer's obligation in a single suit. See La. Stat. Ann. § 22:1269(B)....”"**
The Fourth Circuit noted that “the ‘key feature’ of a direct action is ‘the plaintiff's ability to skip
suing the [tortfeasor] and sue directly his insurance carrier.””"**

Likewise, Louisiana’s Supreme Court has held that the direct action statute creates
“substantive rights on third parties to contracts of public liability insurance, which become vested
atthe moment of the accident in which they are injured.”"** Furthermore, Louisiana’s Supreme Court
has stated that “[t]he Direct Action Statute ‘was enacted to give special rights to tort victims, not to
insureds with contract claims against a defendant.””"*®

The Louisiana Supreme Court has held that a direct action against an insurer is distinct from
the an action against an insured such that the defenses available to the insurer may be different than

those available to the insured."?” The differentiation in Louisiana law between direct action claims

against an insurer and claims against an insured has also been recognized by the U.S. Supreme

B2l umbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert, 348 U.S. 48, 51, 75 S.Ct. 151, 153-54, 99 L.Ed.
59, 63 (1954) (citing West v. Monroe Bakery, 217 La. 189, 46 So. 2d 122; Jackson v. State Farm
Mut. Automobile Ins. Co., 211 La. 19, 29 So. 2d 177)).

B Gateway Residences at Exch., LLC v. Ill. Union Ins. Co., 917 F.3d 269, 272 (4th Cir.
2019).

B4Id. at 273 (quoting Kong v. Allied Prof’l Ins. Co., 750 F.3d 1295, 1300, 1300-01 (11th
Cir. 2014)).

135 West v. Monroe Bakery, Inc., 217 La. 189, 191, 46 So.2d 122, 123 (1950).

BGreen v. Auto Club Grp. Ins. Co., 08-2868 (La. 10/28/09); 24 So. 3d 182, 184 (quoting
Cacamo v. Liberty Mutual Ins. Co., 99-3479 (La. 6/30/00), 764 So. 2d 41, 43).

Y Descant v. Adm'rs of the Tulane Educ. Fund, 93-3098 (La. 07/05/94); 639 So.2d 246,
249-50.
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Court.”® Additionally, the Supreme Court held that an insured is not an indispensable party in a
direct action claim under Louisiana law because Louisiana “has created an optional right to proceed
directly against the insurer” and that ““a complete disposition of the entire claim may be made in this
one action, without injustice to any of the participants™."*’

Thus, Hopeman has failed to meet its burden of proof that the stay should be extended to stay
Creditors’ direct action claims against Liberty Mutual under either section 362(a)(1) or section

362(a)(3).

C. Hopeman Has Failed to Meet Its Burden to Extend the Stay Under 11 U.S.C.
§ 105(a)

“Anyuseof 11 U.S.C. § 105(a) to restrict conduct involving a non-debtor is an extraordinary
measure that this Court will impose only upon a clear demonstration of need. On this question, the
burden of proof falls on the party seeking to extend a stay.”'* While 11 U.S.C. § 105(a) has been
used to impose stays of litigation, “such immediate and direct relief should not ordinarily be granted
in the ordinary course of stay litigation, in the absence of extraordinary or compelling equitable
circumstances.”*' Courts should be careful not to abuse the extraordinary power under 11 U.S.C.
§ 105(a): “While the power may be broad under § 105, courts should be careful not to abuse it. § 105
is not without limits. /d. at 105-7. In the absence of extraordinary or compelling equitable

circumstances, the Court should not invoke 11 U.S.C. § 105.”'*

38 Lumbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert, 348 U.S. 48, 51, 75 S.Ct. 151, 153-54, 99 L.Ed.
59, 63 (1954).

¥ Lumbermen's Mut. Cas. Co. v. Elbert, 348 U.S. 48, 51-52, 75 S.Ct. 151, 154, 99 L.Ed.
59, 64 (1954).

“In re Diocese of Buffalo, 652 B.R. 574, 576 (Bankr. W.D.N.Y. 2023).

“nre LJC Corp., 30 B.R. 292, 294 (Bankr. D.D.C. 1983).

“In re Trang, 58 B.R. 183, 189 (Bankr. S.D. Tex. 1985) (citing In re LJC Corp., 30
Bankr. 292, 8 C.B.C. 2d 883, 885 (Bankr. D.C. 1983)).
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Despite bearing this considerable burden, the only arguments that Hopeman offers regarding
§ 105(a) is “To the extent required, section 105(a) also authorizes entry of the Proposed Interim
Order sought by this Motion to carry out the purposes of section 362(a)(1)”'* and “To the extend
required, section 105(a) also authorizes entry of the Proposed Interim Order sought by this Motion
to carry out the purposes of section 362(a)(3).”'** Hopeman’s failure to explicate its arguments is
likely due to the fact that Hopeman is aware that it is improper to seek injunctive relief via a motion
for extension of the stay. As has been recognized by numerous courts, the proper procedure for

seeking injunctive relief under the Bankruptcy Code is the filing of an adversary proceeding.'* It

wBR Doc. 7 at p. 10.

"“BR Doc. 7 at p. 12.

“Feld v. Zale Corp. (in Re Zale Corp.), 62 F.3d 746, 762-63 (5th Cir. 1995) (“Under
Rule 7001, an injunction requires an adversary proceeding.”); Lyons v. Lyons (In re Lyons), 995
F.2d 923, 924 (9th Cir.1993) (holding that when a Rule 7001 category is at issue the movant
“may obtain the authority he seeks only through an adversary proceeding”); In re Bora Bora Inc.,
424 B.R. 17, 24-25 (Bankr. D.P.R. 2010) (“A request for injunctive relief must be brought by
adversary proceeding. Fed. R. Bankr. P. 7001(7)”); In re Cincom iOutsource, Inc., 398 B.R. 223,
227 (Bankr. S.D. Ohio 2008) (“Under Rule 7001, an injunction requires an adversary
proceeding.”); Balt. Cty. v. IHS Liquidating LLC (In re Integrated Health Servs.), 2006 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 8403, at *9 (D. Del. Mar. 6, 2006) (“One type of bankruptcy dispute that must be
resolved in an adversary proceeding is ‘a proceeding to obtain an injunction.” Fed. R. Bankr. P.
7001(7).”); In re Martin, 268 B.R. 168, 172 (Bankr. E.D. Ark. 2001) (“In order to ensure that due
process and property rights are preserved, Rule 7001, Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure,
establishes a list of proceedings which may only be commenced by the filing of an adversary
proceeding. Rule 7001(7) requires that a request to obtain an injunction, or other equitable relief
be filed as an adversary proceeding. Thus, the debtor must file a complaint, provide for issuance
of a summons, and thereafter serve the summons and complaint pursuant to Rule 7004. Since,
the debtor may not obtain an injunction by motion, the motion must be denied.”); In re Swallen's
Inc., 205 B.R. 879, 880 (Bankr. S.D. Ohio 1997)(injunctive relief was denied for failure to
request it through adversary proceeding); In re Hunter, 190 B.R. 118, 119 (Bankr. D. Colo. 1995)
(“Fed.R.B.P. 7001 which expressly provides that injunctive or equitable relief and actions to
recover money or property shall be sought by way of an adversary proceeding.”); In re Nasco
PR, Inc., 117 B.R. 35, 38 (Bankr. D.P.R. 1990)(“A party wishing to invoke the Court's
injunctive power under Section 105(a) must file an adversary proceeding... and must follow the
traditional standards for the issuance of an injunction.”); In re Venegas Munoz, 73 B.R. 283, 285
(Bankr. D.P.R. 1987) (“a request for injunctive relief under 11 U.S.C. 105 comes under Part VII
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also has been recognized that requests to extend the automatic stay under §105(a) are actually
requests for an injunction which require an adversary proceeding.'*®

The U.S. Fifth Circuit has explained that the Bankruptcy Code requires requests for an
injunction be brought via an adversary proceeding so that the proper procedural protections will be
afforded:

Under Rule 7001, an injunction requires an adversary proceeding. Lyons v. Lyons (In

re Lyons), 995 F.2d 923, 924 (9th Cir.1993) (holding that, when a Rule 7001

category was at issue, the movant "may obtain the authority he seeks only through an

adversary proceeding"). Rule 7001 proceedings incorporate much of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, In re Haber Oil Co., 12 F.3d at 437 (noting that adversary

of the Bankruptcy Rules (Rules 7001(7) and 7065) which require the filing of an adversary
proceeding”); In re Ennis, 50 B.R. 119, 122 (Bankr. D. Nev. 1985) (“The Court also notes that
the proper procedure for requesting injunctive relief is by an adversary proceeding, not by
motion.”); In re Innovative Commc'n Co., LLC, 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 39739, at *9 (D.V.IL. Apr.
30, 2008) (“Pursuant to Federal Rule of Bankruptcy Procedure 7001 (“Rule 7001”"), injunctive
relief may only be obtained in a bankruptcy matter through an adversary proceeding.”); In re B &
F Associates, Inc., 55 B.R. 19, 20 (Bankr. D. Colo. 1985) (“Bankruptcy Rule 7001(7) requires
any proceeding in a bankruptcy court ‘to obtain an injunction or other equitable relief” to be
brought as an adversary proceeding.”).

“In re Bora Bora Inc., 424 B.R. 17, 23 (Bankr. D.P.R. 2010) (“The power of the
bankruptcy courts to enjoin certain actions not subject to the automatic stay, such as an action
against non debtor parties, has been recognized, when such action is interfering improperly with
the purposes of the bankruptcy law or the debtor's reorganization efforts. A.H. Robins Co., Inc. v.
Piccinin, 788 F.2d 994 (4th Cir. 1986). Although called an extension of the automatic stay
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code to non-debtor parties, these are in fact injunctions issued by a
bankruptcy court under 11 U.S.C. § 105(a), after determining that the situation requires it in
order to protect the interests of the bankruptcy estate. In re Cincom iOutsource, Inc., 398 B.R.
223,227 (Bankr. S.D. Ohio, 2008) citing Patton v. Bearden, 8 F.3d 343 (6th Cir. 1993); "Under
the Bankruptcy Act, it was believed that the bankruptcy court lacked jurisdiction to issue such an
injunction. Under the Code, broad injunctive power is available under section 105, and the issue
appears to be one directed to the discretion of the court rather than to its jurisdiction." 3 Alan N.
Resnick and Henry J. Sommer, Collier on Bankruptcy, P 362.04 (15th Ed. Rev'd 2005).”); In re
Lengacher, 485 B.R. 380, 384-85 (Bankr. N.D. Ind. 2012) (“Extending the automatic stay is
actually a request for an injunction and Rule 7001(7) of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy
Procedure requires an adversary proceeding to obtain that kind of relief. /n re Richard B. Vance
and Co., 289 B.R. at 697; In re Koop, 2002 Bankr. LEXIS 503, 2002 WL 1046700 *7 (Bankr.
N.D. IIL. 2002)”).
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proceeding rules "generally "either incorporate or are adaptations of most of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.' " (quoting Fed.R.Bankr.P. 7001 adv. comm.
note)), and they equate to full-blown lawsuits, see Toma Steel Supply, Inc. v.
Transamerican Natural Gas Corp. (In re Transamerican Natural Gas Corp.), 978
F.2d 1409, 1416 (5th Cir.1992) (describing adversary proceedings as " "full blown
federal lawsuits within the larger bankruptcy case,' ... which are governed by all of
the rules in Part VII of the Bankruptcy Rules...." (quoting Matter of Wood & Locker,
Inc., 868 F.2d 139, 142 (5th Cir.1989))), cert. dismissed, U.S., 113 S. Ct. 1892, 123
L. Ed. 2d 646 (1993). In contrast, contested matters require fewer procedural
protections. In re Transamerican Natural Gas Corp., 978 F.2d at 1416 ("Contested
matters are "subject to the less elaborate procedures specified in Bankruptcy Rule
9014.' Contested matter proceedings are generally designed for the adjudication of
simple issues, often on an expedited basis." (quoting Matter of Wood & Locker, Inc.,
868 F.2d at 142)).

In order to initiate an adversary proceeding, a party seeking equitable relief must file
a complaint and serve each affected party. See Village Mobile Homes, Inc. v. First
Gibraltar Bank (In re Village Mobile Homes, Inc.), 947 F.2d 1282, 1283 (5th
Cir.1991) (stating that while a motion suffices for contested matters, an adversary
proceeding requires filing a complaint in keeping with Bankruptcy Rule 7003); In re
Perkins, 902 F.2d 1254, 1258 (7th Cir.1990) (stating that an adversary proceeding
"must be commenced by a properly filed and served complaint" and a Rule 7001
matter initiated by motion rather than by complaint "fails on procedural grounds").'"’

Furthermore, the Fifth Circuit warned that Bankruptcy Courts that dispense with adversary
proceedings are apt to fail to conduct the proper analysis for the granting of injunctions:

Moreover, we find no indication in the record that the bankruptcy court conducted
the proper analysis and made the requisite findings for entry of a preliminary
injunction. See Commonwealth Oil Ref. Co. v. U.S.E.P.A. (In re Commonwealth Oil
Ref. Co.), 805 F.2d 1175, 1188-89 (5th Cir.1986) ("The legislative history of § 105
makes clear that stays under that section are granted only under the usual rules for the
issuance of an injunction."), cert. denied, 483 U.S. 1005, 107 S. Ct. 3228, 97 L. Ed.
2d 734 (1987); In re Eagle-Pitcher Indus., Inc., 963 F.2d at 858 ("When issuing a
preliminary injunction pursuant to its powers set forth in section 105(a), a bankruptcy
court must consider the traditional factors governing preliminary injunctions issued
pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65.").

The four prerequisites to the issuance of a preliminary injunction are: (1) a substantial
likelihood that the movant will prevail on the merits; (2) a substantial threat that the

WFeld v. Zale Corp. (in Re Zale Corp.), 62 F.3d 746, 762-63 (5th Cir. 1995).
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movant will suffer irreparable injury if the injunction is not granted; (3) that the
threatened injury to the movant outweighs the threatened harm an injunction may
cause the party opposing the injunction; and (4) that the granting of the injunction
will not disserve the public interest.

In re Commonwealth Oil Ref. Co., 805 F.2d at 1189 (internal citations omitted);
accord In re Eagle-Picher Indus., Inc.,963 F.2d at 858. Because the bankruptcy court
focused only on the fairness of the settlement to the estate, it failed to address these
issues, that is, whether CIGNA and Zale had satisfied the Rule 65 prerequisites. We
therefore hold that there was no compliance with Rule 7001, constructive or
otherwise. Moreover, we feel this case demonstrates the "difficulties that are apt to
arise if the bankruptcy court too easily permits parties to circumvent the rules
governing adversary proceedings." In re Haber Oil Co., 12 F.3d at 440.'**

Similarly, the District of Delaware has warned that Bankruptcy Courts risk reversible error

if they fail to utilize adversary proceedings to resolve disputes which requires an adversary

proceeding, such as a “proceeding to obtain an injunction”'*:

Adversary proceedings in bankruptcy court are the analogue to lawsuits in district
court -- both are initiated by the filing of a complaint, and both are governed by the
same rules of discovery. See Fed. R. Bankr. P. 7004, 7026-7037. Contested matters,
on the other hand, are initiated by motion, and the applicability of the discovery rules
is at the discretion of the court. See Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9014. Thus, adversary
proceedings offer the litigants more formality and more discovery rights than
contested matters. See Nantucket Investors Il v. Cal. Fed. Bank (In re Indian Palms
Assocs., Ltd.), 61 F.3d 197, 204 n.11 (3d Cir. 1995). Consequently, a bankruptcy
court's erroneous conclusion that a dispute need not be resolved in an adversary
proceeding may be a ground for reversal. See, e.g., MF'S Telecom, Inc. v. Motorola,
Inc. (In re Conxus Communs., Inc.), 262 B.R. 893, 899 (D. Del. June 4, 2001).'*°

WFeld v. Zale Corp. (in Re Zale Corp.), 62 F.3d 746, 765 (5th Cir. 1995).

“Balt. Cty. v. IHS Liquidating LLC (In re Integrated Health Servs.), 2006 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 8403, at *9 (D. Del. Mar. 6, 2006) (“One type of bankruptcy dispute that must be
resolved in an adversary proceeding is ‘a proceeding to obtain an injunction.” Fed. R. Bankr. P.
7001(7).”)

Balt. Cty. v. IHS Liquidating LLC (In re Integrated Health Servs.), 2006 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 8403, at *8-9 (D. Del. Mar. 6, 2006).
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Because the broad injunctive powers afforded under 11 U.S.C. § 105(a) should be used
sparingly, injunctive relief should only be granted when the movant has carried its burden through
clear and convincing evidence:

The broad injunctive powers under 11 U.S.C. § 105(a) should be used sparingly. /n
re Lazarus Burman Assoc., 161 B.R. 891, 901 (Bankr. E.D.N.Y. 1993); In re
Codfish, 97 B.R. 132 (Bankr. D.P.R. 1988); In re Criadores de Yabucoa, Inc., 75
B.R. 96 (Bankr. D.P.R. 1987). Thus, a preliminary injunction is an extraordinary and
drastic remedy which should only be granted when the movant has carried its burden
through clear and convincing evidence. Philadelphia Newspapers, 407 B.R. at 616;
Cincom, 398 B.R. at 227."!

Not only has Hopeman failed to bring its request for injunctive relief under 11 U.S.C. §
105(a) via an adversary proceeding as required by the Bankruptcy Code, Hopeman has also failed
to set forth the sort of clear and convincing evidence that is its burden to present in order to be
afforded the extraordinary and drastic remedy of an injunction under § 105(a).

The U.S. Fourth Circuit has explained that before a Court can use the authority under 11
U.S.C. § 105 to stay suits, it must find that failure to enjoin such suits would have an effect on the
bankruptcy estate and would adversely or detrimentally influence and pressure the Debtor through
the third party:

Accepting that section 105 confers on the bankruptcy court power under its expanded

jurisdiction as expressed in section 1471(b) [28 U.S.C.] of the Bankruptcy Reform

Act of 1978 and now section 1334(b), 28 U.S.C. of the 1984 Bankruptcy

Amendments to enjoin suits against parties in other courts, whether state or federal,

it is necessary to mark out the circumstances under which the power or jurisdiction

may be exercised. In Otero Mills, supra, the Court approved a ruling that "to so

enjoin a creditor's action against a third party, the court must find that failure to

enjoin would effect [sic] the bankruptcy estate and would adversely or detrimentally
influence and pressure the debtor through the third party." 25 Bankr. at 1020."*

5'n re Bora Bora Inc., 424 B.R. 17, 25 (Bankr. D.P.R. 2010).
24.H. Robins Co. v. Piccinin, 788 F.2d 994, 1003 (4th Cir. 1986).
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The Creditors are the surviving family members of individuals who developed and died from
mesothelioma following exposure to asbestos from Hopeman’s operations (i.e. contracting activities)
at Avondale Shipyards, and under the CGL policies issued to Hopeman by Liberty Mutual, such
operations claims are not subject to the aggregate limits in the policies. Furthermore, the policies
under which the Creditors would pursue direct action claims against Liberty Mutual have not been
listed as assets of the bankruptcy estate. Thus, the Creditors’ direct action claims against Liberty
Mutual for exposure to asbestos from Hopeman’s operations cannot have an effect on the bankruptcy
estate, and will not adversely or detrimentally influence or pressure Hopeman.

WHEREFORE, Janet Rivet and Kayla Rivet (surviving spouse and child of Tommy Rivet),
Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann Ragusa Primeaux, and Stephanie Jean Ragusa Connors
(surviving spouse and children of Frank P. Ragusa, Jr.), and Erica Dandry Constanza and Monica
Dandry Hallner (surviving children of Michael Dandry, Jr.) submit that Hopeman Brothers, Inc.’s
Motion for Entry of Interim and Final Orders Extending the Automatic Stay to Stay Asbestos-
Related Actions Against Non-Debtor Defendants'*® should be denied, and that the automatic stay
should not be extended to apply to the Creditors’ direct action claims against Liberty Mutual
Insurance Company.

Dated: July 30, 2024 Respectfully submitted,
/s/Kollin G. Bender
Robert S. Westermann ( VSB No. 43294)
Kollin G. Bender (VSB No. 98912)
HRISCHLER FLEISCHER, P.C.

2100 East Cary Street
P.O. Box 500

'*BR Doc. 7.
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Richmond, VA 23218-0500

Telephone: (804) 771-9500

Facsimile: (804) 644-0957

Email: rwestermann@hirschlerlaw.com
kbender@hirschlerlaw.com

Local counsel for Janet Rivet, Kayla Rivet,
Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann
Ragusa Primeaux, Stephanie Jean Ragusa
Connors, Erica Dandry Constanza and
Monica Dandry Hallner

-and-

Gerolyn P. Roussel (pro hac vice pending)
Jonathan B. Clement (pro hac vice pending)
Benjamin P. Dinehart (pro hac vice pending)
ROUSSEL & CLEMENT

1550 West Causeway Approach

Mandeville, LA 70471

Telephone: (985) 778-2733

Facsimile: (985) 778-2734

Email: rcfirm@rousselandclement.com

Lead Counsel for Janet Rivet, Kayla Rivet,
Maxine Becky Polkey Ragusa, Valerie Ann
Ragusa Primeaux, Stephanie Jean Ragusa
Connors, Erica Dandry Constanza and
Monica Dandry Hallner
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on July 30, 2024, 1 caused a true and correct copy of the foregoing
Objection to be electronically served by the Court’s CM/ECF system, which thereby caused an
electronic notification of filing to be served on all other registered users of the ECF system who
have filed notices of appearances in this case; I further certify that a true and correct copy of this
Objection was also served via electronic mail to the following parties:

Kathryn R. Montgomery
Office of the United States Trustee
701 East Broad Street, Ste. 4303
Richmond, VA 23219
Kathryn.Montgomery@usdoj.gov

Tyler P. Brown
Henry Pollard Long, III
Hunton Andrews Kurth LLP
951 East Byrd Street
Richmond, VA 23219
tpbrown@huntonak.com
hlong@huntonak.com

Dion W. Hayes
Sarah B. Boehm
Connor W. Symons
McGuireWoods LLP
Gateway Plaza
800 East Canal Street
Richmond VA, 23219
dhayes@mcguirewoods.com
sboehm@mcguirewoods.com
csymons@mcguirewoods.com

Nancy McComas-Doiron
c/o Carol A. Hastings, Esquire
Peter Angelos Law
100 N. Charles Street, 20th Floor
Baltimore, MD 21201
chastings@lawpga.com

Darrell Kitchen
c/o Lisa Nathanson Busch, Esquire
Simmons Hanly Conroy
112 Madison Avenue, 7th Floor
New York, NY 10016
Ibusch@simmonsfirm.com
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Donald M. Hoffman, Jr.
c/o Stephen Austin, Esquire
Stephen J. Austin, LLC
1 Galleria Blvd. Ste. 1900
Metairie, LA 70001
stephen@stephenjaustin.com

Veronica Miller
c/o Chris McKean, Esquire
MRHFM Law Firm
1015 Locust Street, Ste. 1200
St. Louis, MO 63101
cmckean@mrhfmlaw.com

Melissa Beerman
c/o J. Bradley Smith, Esquire
Dean Omar Branham Shirley, LLP
302 N. Market Street, Ste. 300
Dallas, TX 75202
bsmith@dobslegal.com

Jeffrey A. Liesemer
James P. Wehner
Caplin & Drysdale, Chartered
One Thomas Circle NW, Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20005
jliesemer@capdale.com
jwehner@capdale.com

/s/ Kollin G. Bender
Counsel
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TOMMY RIVET August 22, 2022

1
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

TOMMY RIVET * CIVIL ACTION
* NO. 2:22-cv-2584
VERSUS * SECTION "L"™ (5)
* JUDGE:
HUNTINGTON INGALLS * CARL J. BARBIER
INCORPORATED, ET AL * MAGISTRATE:

* * * * * * * * MICHAEL B. NORTH
(PARTICIPANTS VIA ZOOM AS NOTED)

Videotaped Deposition of TOMMY RIVET,
given at 1633 Chestnut Drive, Morgan City,
Louisiana 70380, via Zoom video conferencing,

on August 22nd, 2022.

VIDEOGRAPHER:
GILLEY DELORIMIER (DEPO-VUE, INC.)

REPORTED BY:
EXHIBIT
JOSEPH A. FAIRBANKS, JR., CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER #75005 13
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MS. ROUSSEL:

No. An objection by one
defendant will be good as to all, so
that we only need one person making
the objection.

MS. PENN:
Thank you.
(Off the record.)

EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:

A.

State your full name for the record.
Tommy Paul Rivet.

And what®"s your date of birth?

I BN Em of "57.

Are you married, Mr. Rivet?

Yes, ma“am.

And to whom are you married?
Married to Janet Rivet.

When were you and Janet married?

Um, March the 9th of "83.

And do you and Janet have any

Yes, ma"am. Kayla Rivet.

Describe your relationship with your

wife Janet.

I love her to death. | can"t ask for

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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TOMMY RIVET

1 a better wife. Can"t ask for a better wife.
2 She do everything 1 cannot for me.

3 Q- And describe your relationship with
4  your daughter Kayla.

5 A. Same old thing. |1 can"t do nothing
6 without my daughter. My daughter is my right
7 hand and eyes.

8 Q How often do you see Kayla?

9 A. Every day.

10 Q. Mr. Rivet, who are your parents?

11 A Marie Rivet and Libby Rivet.

12 Q. And when you were growing up, where
13 did your father work?

14 A. He worked at Avondale Shipyards in
15 Westwego, right there by Bridge City right

16 there. 1t"s right there next to each other.
17 But he originally worked in Bridge City.

18 Q. And when you were born, where was your
19 father working?
20 A. Bridge City. Avondale Shipyards.
21 Q And he worked there until when?
22 A. Till he passed way.
23 Q. And you lived with him until?
24 A Till he wasn"t here no more.
25 Q- Okay. Did you have any other family

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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TOMMY RIVET

1 members who worked at Avondale Shipyards?

2 A Yes, ma"am. I did.

3 Q. And who were the other family members
4  who worked at Avondale?

5 A. My brother Lipton Rivet, Libby Rivet,
6 and my uncle Red -- Ray Rivet.

7 Q. Now, when your father worked at

8 Avondale shipyards, were you living with him?
9 A. Yes, ma“am, | did.

10 Q. And when your brother Lipton was

11  working at Avondale shipyards, did you have

12 with him?

13 A. Sure did, ma*am. We shared the same
14  bedroom.

15 Q. When your brother Libby Jr. worked at
16 Avondale, did you live with him?

17 A Yes, ma"am. We all shared the same
18 house.

19 Q- Describe what your father looked like
20 when he came home from Avondale.
21 A. He was dirty. He was dirty with white
22 all over him. We to leave -- when he gets home
23 at night, we"d go -- we"d go rabbit hunting,
24 we"d go look for cypress logs, and that"s what
25 we done.

JOHNS,

PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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15
1 Q. The clothes that your father wore to
2 work, was that the same clothes he wore here?
3 A. Yes, ma"am. He did. He wore i1t till
4 about 7:00, 8:00 at night, then he"d take his
5 clothes off, take a shower, and he®"d go to bed.
6 Well, we didn"t have a shower; the bath, that"s
7 all we had.
8 Q. And so after work, would he come i1nto
9 the home with his work clothes?
10 A Yes, ma“am, he did.
11 Q. Would he sit at the kitchen table?
12 A. He sat by the coffee table.
13 MR. POWELL:
14 Object to form.
15 EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:
16 Q- Okay. Describe the areas of the house
17  that he would come into with his work clothes.
18 A. Try 1t?
19 Describe then areas of the house --
20 Oh, like --
21 MR. POWELL:
22 Object to form. Leading.

23  EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:
24 Q. And since there was an objection, let

25 me ask you, when your father came home from

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE 504 219-1993
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TOMMY RIVET
1 fluid. The next morning, they took -- drained
2 the fluid out my lung. It was four liters of
3 fluid 1in my right lung.
4 Q. Ultimately, you had a biopsy?
5 A. Yes. That was later. But then
6 Dr. Cefalu send me to Dr. -- to Dr. -- 1in
7 Thibodaux 1 was gonna get a lung doctor. The
8 lung doctor send me to a doctor, he brought me
9 back to the back, take the fluid outta me, i1t
10 was another four liters of fluid. 1 got it
11 three times pulled out.
12 So they send me to Dr. Perez.
13 Dr. Perez. Dr. Perez say, I"m gonna send you
14 in there for the -- take a biopsy on you. |1
15 said, okay.
16 So we went and take a biopsy, and they
17 couldn®t -- they took a biopsy, but they say
18 the whole outside of the lung of the -- 1t was
19  full of cancer.
20 And 1 told right off the bat, 1 said,
21 I don"t want to hear what 1t 1s. You tell my
22 wife. 1 gotta fight this. And that"s just
23 what 1"m trying to do.
24 Q. Okay. Now, let"s talk about when your
25 father and your brothers were working at

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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TOMMY RIVET

1 Avondale shipyards. Can you just describe to

2 me, where was the washing machine?

3 A. The washing machine was right on the
4 side the living room. Right there i1n the

5 lill -—- like a hole, where they -- where they

6 fold clothes and wash the clothes and

7 everything.

8 Q. And how often was the clothes washed?
9 A. Sometimes once, sometimes twice a day.
10 Q. Were you in the area when the clothes
11  was being washed?

12 A. Right next door, the kitchen.

13 Q. Describe how i1t would be washed.

14 A. Well, they washed it in the wash -- iIn
15 the old wringer, and they had the rollers. You
16 push 1t through the rollers, the rollers would
17 wring 1t tight, and then they put in the drier.
18 Q- And before they would wash i1t, what

19 would-
20 A. Then they"d take i1t out.
21 Q- And where were you when that was being
22  done?
23 A. Right there in the kitchen.
24 Q. And all the family clothing, was that
25 all washed together?

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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TOMMY RIVET

1 A. Everything right there washed

2 together.

3 Q. Now, when your father came home from

4 work, you said that he would have what on his

5 clothes?

6 A. Like a dust. Like a white powder,

7 something like that.

8 Q. Now, when you started with these

9 symptoms, you said at first they thought i1t was
10 a pulled muscle?

11 A. Yes, ma“"am.

12 Q. Okay. When you fTirst started with the
13 symptoms, though, were you still working at the
14  time?

15 A Yes, ma“am.

16 Q And how much were you making?

17 A $275 a day.

18 Q- And how many days would you work?

19 A Six or seven days a week.
20 Q Had you not gotten sick, how long had
21  you planned to work?
22 A. 1"d work for a while.
23 Q. Years?
24 A. Longer. Longer years, yeah.
25 Q. Now, describe to me the symptoms

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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TOMMY RIVET August 22, 2022
139
1 a camp, but 1 got rid of 1t before I got --
2 quit hunting.
3 Q. Okay. 1 think those are all the
4 questions 1 have, Mr. Rivet. Thank you.
5 A. Have a good day.
6 Q. You too.
7 MS. ROUSSEL:
8 Does anybody else have any
9 questions?
10 Okay. I have a couple of
11 questions.

12 EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:

13 Q. Now, when Avondale®s attorney was

14  asking you questions, they asked about, um,

15 when your mother and your sister were doing the
16 laundry. Before you started going to school at
17 all, when your mom and your sister were doing
18 the laundry where were you?

19 A. Before 1 go to school? Most of the

20 time 1 was with them in the washroom.

21 Q. And when they were -- when you were a
22  small child, did you actually see them doing

23 the laundry?

24 A. Oh, yeah. 1 was small. |1 stayed in
25 there with my diapers and my I1ill shirt.

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE 504 219-1993
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TOMMY RIVET
1 Q. So you were hanging -- you were with
2 your mom.
3 A. My mom and daddy. My mom all the
4  time.
5 Q. And that was including when she was
6 doing laundry?
7 A. Yes, Sir.
8 DEFENSE COUNSEL:
9 Object to form.
10 EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:
11 Q. Now, too, you talked about the fact
12 that, um, you were still working when you
13 started with problems which the --
14 A. Yes, ma“"am.
15 Q- -- doctors were telling you at that
16 time were pulled muscles?
17 A. Yes.
18 Q. Okay. And you stopped working because
19 of your symptoms which we now know to have been
20 mesothelioma?
21 A. Yes, ma“am.
22 DEFENSE COUNSEL:
23 Object to form.
24 EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:
25 Q. Since there was an objection, let me

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 22, 2022
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

NOTE: This transcript certification 1is
valid only when accompanied by my original
signature over my state seal.

I, JOSEPH A. FAIRBANKS, JR., CCR, RPR,
Certified Court Reporter in and for the State
of Louisiana, as the officer before whom the
foregoing was taken, do hereby certify:

That the witness was sworn by me upon
authority of R.S. 37:2554 and did testify as
set forth in the foregoing pages;

That said proceeding and testimony was
reported by me in the stenotype reporting
method, was thereafter transcribed and prepared
by me or under my personal direction and
supervision, and is a true and correct
transcription to the best of my ability and
understanding;

That this transcript was prepared in
compliance with transcript format guidelines
established by statute or by rules of the
Board;

That I am knowledgeable of the
arrangements, financial and otherwise, with the
person on entity arranging for reporting
services, and that I have acted in compliance
with the prohibition on contractural
relationships as defined by the Louisiana Code
of Civil Procedure Article 1434 and in rules
and advisory opinions of the Board;

That I am not related to counsel or to
the parties herein, nor am I otherwise
interested in the outcome of this matter.

JOSEPH A. FAIRBANKS, JR.;??CR, ”f;
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER 750075
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

TOMMY RIVET CIVIL ACTION NO.
Plaintiff 2-22-cv—-2584
VERSUS
JUDGE CARL J. BARBIER
HUNTINGTON INGALLS
INC., ET AL MAGISTRATE MICHAEL NORTH
Defendants

X k kK Kk Kk X*x k% X*x k% *x Kk k *x k% X * * *x * *x * *x %

Deposition of BRENDA R. LEBLANC, P. O.
Box 277, Lafitte, Louisiana, taken at
Home2Suites by Hilton, 1701 11lth Street,
Harvey, Louisiana, on April 21, 2023, at or
about 10:08 a.m.

APPEARANCES:

ROUSSEL & CLEMENT

By: Gerolyn P. Roussel, Esqg.

By: Jonathan B. Clement, Esqg.

1550 West Causeway Approach

Mandeville, Louisiana 70471

(Attorney for Plaintiff)

IRWIN FRITCHIE URQUHART & MOORE

By: Edward W. Trapolin, Esdg.

400 Poydras Street, Suite 2700

New Orleans, Louisiana 70130
(Attorney for Huntington Ingalls, Inc.)
SIMON, PERAGINE, SMITH & REDFEARN

By: Douglas R. Kinler, Esq.

1100 Poydras Street, 30th Floor

New Orleans, Louisiana 70163
(Attorney for Eagle, Inc. And The
Traveler's Indemnity Company in its
capacity as an alleged insurer of the
McCarty Corporation - for liability and
damages issues only)

REPORTED BY:
Marsha M. Donnelly, CSR

2.'4 Amerson =) 15

COURT REFORTING &S LITIGATION SUFPORT

L0 BT0LTRAY PO Bow 1564 Hommond LA 70404 Fox $A5.419.075%



Case 2£-824289K LP-D Doc B6elbneri a@%%%;%%q%@é@/@ﬂﬂ%ém# mhase
age 2o

o 3 o o oS, w N

I N T e e e e e e T e T N =
U W N PR O W O Yy U W N R O

Exhibit(s
Page 5

* * * * *

BRENDA R. LEBLANC, P. O. Box 277,
Lafitte, Louisiana 70067, called as a
witness and having been duly sworn, testified
as follows:

EXAMINATION BY MR. TRAPOLIN:

Q. Good morning.
A. Good morning.
Q. My name is Ed Trapolin. We met

before the deposition. Would you please state
your name for the record.

A. Brenda R. LeBlanc.

Q. Ms. LeBlanc, have you ever been

deposed before? This 1s a deposition.

A. Right. Uh-huh.

Q. Have you done this before?

A. A long time ago.

Q. And what was that about?

A. I think a wreck or something, yeah.

Q. Was it your wreck or somebody

else's wreck where you were a witness?

A. That's a long time ago. I don't
know.

Q. Fair enough. Have you ever --

A. But I know I did it, you know, so.

@A Amerson =]
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Q. Okay. And what did your father do?

A. He was a —-- he worked at Avondale
Shipyard.

Q. And do you remember what he did at
Avondale?

A. He was a burner, fitter. Anything

they needed from him, he would volunteer.

Q. Did you ever go to Avondale
Shipyard?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many times did you go there?

A. Well, every time they launched a

big ship because it was my dad and his
brother that released the ship into the

water.
Q. Right.
A. So 1t was a big thing with them.
Q. All right. So did you ever go

there for any other purpose other than the

ship launches?

A. No.

Q. Sometimes they had family days or
things like that. Did you ever go to that?

A. No.

Q. Other than watching the ships get

@A AmersoniES
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Every day. Sometimes twice a day.
Yeah. Okay.

> 0

Even on Sundays after church.
Q. Well, with 13 people in the
household, I would imagine that was quite a

process, huh?

A. Yes.

Q. And so you started helping with the
laundry at six years old?

A. Yes.

Q. And what kind of washer was it?

Was it an old type --

A. Old wringer type machine.

Q. With a wringer on top?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you recall helping with your
father's laundry?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. What do you recall about his
laundry?

A. Well, we had to shake everything
all the time. Because even the other boys

that was working, you know, we shook all
their clothes because it was always full of,

you know, white stuff and with the light glue

@A AmersoniES
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stuff. And we had to put them on the porch
and with a scrub -- a scrubbing. You had to
scrub and make sure there was no oil or
nothing or nothing in 1t to mix with the
other clothes. Yes.

Q. Now, you said the other -- the
other boys' clothes had dust and dirt on them,
too?

A. Yes.

Q. And where -- do you know where they

were working that they --

A. At Avondale.
Q. All the --
A. Well, a lot of the older ones got

married and left out so, you know, yeah.

Q. So when you were six, do you recall
how many people were still living in the
family home?

A. Seems like a whole lot. We slept
like maybe three or four in the bed. Five in
the bed.

Q. Yeah.

A. Yeah.

Q. I didn't grow up 1n that crowded
environment.

@A Amerson =]
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1 Q. Okay. That's fine. Do you have

2 any information of any companies that may have

3 supplied materials to Avondale, sold anything

4 to Avondale, anything that?

S A. No.

6 0. Okay. Very good. Do you know if

7 your father worked on any ships at Avondale?

8 A. Yeah, he worked on the ships.

9 Q. Do you have any information, did he
10 ever tell you about the type or names of any
11 ships he worked on?

12 A. It was a lot of Navy ships.

13 BY MS. MCQUILLAR:

14 Object to form.

15 Q. I'm sorry.

16 A. Navy ships.

17 Q. Your father told you this?

18 A. I don't know the -- yes. Well,

19 when they used to go and launch them, we was
20 there and they was -- you know, the Navies
21 were there and, you know.

22 0. So you recall going to launches for
23 Naval vessels that were being launched?

24 A. Well, yeah, any kind of vessels.
25 The ships that they made.

@A AmersoniES
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Okay. Go ahead.
EXAMINATION BY MS. ST. JULIEN:
Q. Hi, Ms. LeBlanc. My name 1s Milele

St. Julien. Can you tell me who participated
with the laundry before you moved out of the
family home 1n 196772

A. Could you repeat that, please.

Q. Can you tell me which one of your
siblings helped your mother participate with
the laundry activity prior to you moving out
of the home in 196772

A. All the ones that was left behind.
Libby, Margarette, Tommy. Anybody that was
there she would make them haul clothes and
help her when I wasn't there helping them.

Q. Okay. And did you have a specific
day to do laundry or how did you all divide up
the laundry duty?

A. No. Just every day the laundry was
done and whoever went over there. And when T
went over there to have coffee and if she had
laundry, I used to do it. Mainly it was a
lot on me. I used to do everything when my
daddy came home from work and my mom didn't

get home until five.

6.'4 AmersoniES
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I went to school. I got out at
3:10, got home at 3:30, made ice water, cup
of coffee for my daddy, sat that out and
started putting her rice or cut up onions
and, you know, started supper and -- I was
grown up when I was like 10 years old. I was
doing everything.
BY MS. ST. JULIEN:
Okay. Thank you, Ms. LeBlanc.
That's all the questions I have.
BY THE WITNESS:
Thank you.
BY MR. TRAPOLIN:
Anybody else?
BY MS. ROUSSEL:
Anybody else on the computer have
any questions.
EXAMINATION BY MS. ROUSSEL:
Q. Okay. So I have some questions.
You said Tommy helped with the laundry?
A. Yes.
Q. Even when he wasn't doing the
laundry, was he in the area --
A. Oh, vyes.

Q. -—- where the laundry was being

@A AmersoniES
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1 done?
2 A. Yes.
3 BY MS. MCQUILLAR:
4 Object to form.
S Q. And describe for me how you would
6 do the laundry, how the laundry would be done.
7 A. Well, when we get to the colored
8 clothes because you have to divide all your
9 clothes and then if they had all -- you know,
10 you would lay it out on the porch right next
11 to the kitchen. Attached to the kitchen.
12 And we'd lay it out and we had a scrub brush
13 and we used to put some detergent, washing
14 powder, and scrub that before and you'd have
15 to rinse it. Shake it, then scrub it, then
16 rinse it, then put it in the machine.
17 Q. And when you would shake it, you
18 were shaking the dust out of the clothes?
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. And that included the dust that
21 your dad came home from working?
22 A. Yes.
23 0. And your brothers --
24 BY MS. MCQUILLAR:
25 Object to form.

6.'4 AmersoniES
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0. -- who were working at Avondale at
the time --
A. Yes.
Q. -— that included that?
BY MS. ST. JULIEN:
Object to form.
Q. When your dad came home from work,
did he have white dust from head to toe?
A. Yes.
BY MS. MCQUILLAR:
Object to form.
Q. And Tommy was the youngest. What

kind of interaction would Tommy have with your
dad?

A. Oh, he didn't care what his
daddy -- how dirty he was. He was always on
my daddy and my mom. He was really close to
them.

Q. So your dad would -- he would sit
on your dad's lap?

A. Oh, vyes.

BY MS. MCQUILLAR:

Object to form.
Q. And your dad was in his work

clothes?

@A AmersoniES
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1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2
3 I, Marsha M. Donnelly, Certified Court
4 Reporter in and for the State of Loulsiana,
5 Certificate No. 95012, which is current and
6 in good standing, as the Officer before whom
7 this testimony was taken, do hereby certify
8 that the above-named witness, after having
9 been first duly sworn by me upon authority of
10 R.S. 37:2554, did testify as hereinabove set
11 forth; that this testimony was reported by me
12 in the stenotype reported method, was
13 prepared and transcribed by me or under my
14 personal direction and supervision, and 1s a
15 true and correct transcript to the best of my
16 ability and understanding; that I am not
17 related to counsel or to the parties herein,
18 nor am I otherwise interested 1n the outcome
19 of this matter.
20 / /
21 / J\/\f‘/{'/], /\\,
22 Marsha M. 6onneliy

“Certified Shorthand Reporter
23
24
25
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

TOMMY RIVET CIVIL ACTION NO.
Plaintiff 2:22-cv-2584
VERSUS JUDGE CARL J. BARBIER
HUNTINGTON INGALLS MAGISTRATE MICHAEL
INCORPORATED, ET AL NORTH
Defendants

DEPOSITION OF LIBBY ELOIE RIVET, taken at
HOMEZ2 SUITES BY HILTON, 1701 11TH STREET, HARVEY,
LOUISIANA 70058, and also via Zoom, in the
above-entitled cause on the 20th of April, 2023

commencing at 10:04 a.m.

REPORTED BY:CHERIE' E. WHITE
CCR (LA), CSR (TX), CSR (MS), RPR
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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Page 13

records. And they came in three PDFs; and

I think there was a personnel file, a

medical file, and a group health file, but

for purposes of today's deposition, I'm

going to attach all of those documents in

globo as Exhibit No. 1 to the deposition

transcript.

(Exhibit 1 marked for identification.)

BY MR. SAUNDERS:

0. Mr. Rivet, for the record, can you
please tell me your full name?

A. Libby Rivet, Junior.

Q. Okay. Have you ever gone by any
nicknames or anything other than Libby?

A. That's 1it.

Q. Okay. Now, I understand that for
sometime you worked at Avondale, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Did you have any nicknames at
Avondale? I know that was common.

Bone Head.

Q. Yeah?
A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. And, Mr. Rivet, what 1is your

date of birth?

6.'4 AmersoniES
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Page 51
Asked and answered.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:
0. Now, when you were a helper and came

and cleaned up after an insulating crew, did your
work as a helper create dust that you could see
in the air?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Do you recall that dust that
you could see in the air in connection with your
work as a helper, did that get on your body and
your clothes?

A. Yes, sir.

DEFENSE COUNSEL:

Object to form.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:

Q. Do you recall at any time that you
worked at Avondale working around boilermakers?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Okay. Did you ever during your time
at Avondale work around the crews that would
install the wallboards in the 1living portions of
the vessels?

DEFENSE COUNSEL:

Object to the form.

THE WITNESS:

6.'4 AmersoniES
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Yeah.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:
Q. You did?
A. (Nodded head affirmatively.)

Q. Do you remember at all the -- the
name of that company that would do that work?
A. Yeah. I don't remember.

Q. Okay. All right. Have you ever
heard of Hopeman Brothers?

A. It sounds -- sounds familiar.

Q. Okay. What --

MR. BELL:

Can we take a break?
MR. SAUNDERS:

What's that?
MR. BELL:

A restroom break?
MR. SAUNDERS:

Yeah. Sure.
MR. BELL:
I'm sorry. You don't mind?

(A short recess was taken.)
MR. SAUNDERS:
All right. We are back on.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:

@A AmersoniES
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0. You don't remember?
A. I don't remember.
Q. Okay. Do you recall one way or

another whether that process of installing those
boards was a dusty or dirty process?
DEFENSE COUNSEL:
Object to the form.
THE WITNESS:

Dusty.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:
Q. I'm sorry?
A. Dusty.
Q. Okay. And you recall seeing that

with your eyes?

DEFENSE COUNSEL:

Object to the form.

THE WITNESS:

Yes, sir.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:

Q. Okay. And is that a dust that you
recall personally would get on your body or
clothes?

DEFENSE COUNSEL:

Object to the form.

THE WITNESS:

@A AmersoniES
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Page 56
Yes, sir.
BY MR. SAUNDERS:
Q. Were you ever told during your time

at Avondale as a helper that you were not
supposed to go near that type of work when it was
being done?

A. No, sir.

Q. Okay. Do you ever recall when that
work was going on in connection with putting
those -- those wallboards up, do you recall
anyone using any type of vacuum or collection
system to try to capture that dust?

A. I don't remember, no. No.

Q. I asked you earlier what types of
vessels or ships you remembered working aboard
during your time at Avondale, and you said maybe
Navy ships, correct?

A. Navy ships.

Q. The work that I've been asking you
about about the insulating crews and the
wallboard application and all the other
equipment, you've been telling me what you did as
a helper or a cleanup crew member, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that would be aboard those Navy

6.'4 AmersoniES

COURT REFORTING &S LITIGATION SUFPORT

L0 BT0LTRAY PO Bow 1564 Hommond LA 70404 Fox $A5.419.075%




Case 22-824280K LP-DIDoc B6elbnery @? Wﬂé}/éﬁiﬁ? #3021 BPEHGdD# é6d
ﬁ% :ﬁ age 7of1l 589

s N

o J o O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Exhibit
Page 62
My mama.
Q. Okay.
A. The family. We will just say
family.
Q. Sure. Okay. Did you ever -- did

you ever help your mom or watch your mom --

A.

Q

A.

Q
your —-- from

A.

separate.

Q.

Yes, sir.

-—- do the laundry?

Yes.

How did she do that laundry from
the work clothes?

Separate. They would do it

Sure. Okay. Did your brother Tommy

ever do the family laundry?

B O R

Q.
sometimes?

A.

Q.
clothes?

A.
Q.

Yes.
Okay.
Well, everybody did.

Did you ever do the laundry

Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

And that would include your work

Yes, sir.

Okay. Mr. Rivet, other than when

6.'4 AmersoniES
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Q. Now, you mentioned that -- you were
talking about that the family helped out with the
laundry. I want to -- I'm going to test your
memory here, Mr. Rivet.

So during that -- between 19 -- 1T
wrote these dates wrong. '70 and '71 during the
three time periods that you worked at Avondale,
did you have a specific memory of your brother,

Tommy, helping with that laundry during that

timeframe?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Okay. What makes you have a

specific memory of that specific timeframe when
you were 18 years old of your brother Tommy
helping with laundry?

A. Because everybody, all the family,
you know, we all get together and we just take
turns washing the clothes and everything.

Q. So there was -- including your
parents, there's 16 of you-all?

A. Yes.

Q. So how did it work? I mean,
obviously 16 people aren't doing the laundry at
the same time.

A. No.

6.'4 AmersoniES
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1 A. Yes.
2 0. Did you and your father ever work
3 together at Avondale?
4 A. Well, we worked in the same yard
5 sometimes, and sometimes, you know, if I worked,
6 I worked there.
7 Q. And that was a bad question. I
8 understand you worked in the same yard, but did

9 you—-all ever work side by side together during
10 the three stints that you worked at Avondale?
11 A. No.

12 0. Okay. And you mentioned that --

13 well, I don't know if you mentioned this or not,

14 but I believe your -- let's go off the record.

15 (A discussion was held off the record.)

16 MR. KINLER:

17 We can go back on the record. Sorry
18 about that.

19 BY MR. KINLER:
20 Q. Mr. Rivet, your brother Lipton, what
21 did he do for a living?

22 A. He was welding.

23 Q. Okay. And do you know where he
24 worked?

25 A. Avondale. That's -- Avondale.

6.'4 AmersoniES
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with your dad, but did you ever see your dad do

his work?
A.
Q.
at Avondale?
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
cutting?
A.
Q.
you ever see
A.
Q.

your brother

Yes.

What did you see your father doing

Cutting.
Cutting what?
Iron, cutting material.

What was the material he was

Steel plates.

Other than cutting steel plates, did
your father do any other work?

No, not that I remember.

And let me ask the same question of
Lipton.

Did you ever see your brother doing

any work at Avondale?

A.
Q.

Welding like material.

Where would your brother be welding?

MS. ROUSSEL:

Object to the form of the question.

THE WITNESS:

I don't remember.

BY MS. PUENTE:

6.'4 AmersoniES
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Page 115
Yes.
BY MS. ROUSSEL:
0. And the insulators were working on

the piping and the equipment in the engine room,
weren't they?
A. Right.
DEFENSE COUNSEL:
Object to the form.
BY MS. ROUSSEL:
Q. And so whatever the insulators were
working with you were exposed to, correct?
DEFENSE COUNSEL:
Object to the form.
THE WITNESS:
Yes.
BY MS. ROUSSEL:
Q. And you brought some of that home on
your clothing?
DEFENSE COUNSEL:
Object to the form.
THE WITNESS:
Yes.
BY MS. ROUSSEL:
Q. Did you see during that time period

your father working in the engine rooms at

6.'4 AmersoniES
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1 Avondale Shipyards?
2 MULTIPLE DEFENSE COUNSEL:
3 Object to the form.
4 THE WITNESS:
S Yes.
6 BY MS. ROUSSEL:
7 0. And, likewise, during that time
8 period, did you see your father working in the
9 living quarters of the ships?
10 DEFENSE COUNSEL:
11 Object to the form.
12 THE WITNESS:
13 Sometimes.

14 BY MS. ROUSSEL:

15 Q. Okay. And, likewise, everything

16 that you were being exposed to when he was

17 working in the engine rooms, both you and he were
18 being exposed --

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. -— to the same kind of insulation

21 products?

22 A. Yes.

23 DEFENSE COUNSEL:

24 Objection to form. Misstates prior
25 testimony.

6.'4 AmersoniES

COURT REFORTING &S LITIGATION SUFPORT

L0 BT0LTRAY PO Bow 1564 Hommond LA 70404 Fox $A5.419.075%



CapseP24324-P8-KILPD JNod B8t e niE

s N

o J o O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Exhibit(gﬁfgw %ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁw 30/24 16 RagEID#DEE0

Page 117

BY MS. ROUSSEL:

0. And you and your father were also --
if the insulators or the boillermakers or whatever
was occurring 1n the engine room at that time,

both and you father would have been exposed --

A. Yes.
Q. -—-to the same products?
A. Yes.

DEFENSE COUNSEL:

Objection form.

BY MS. ROUSSEL:

Q. You talked about this glue or
adhesive that you actually worked with yourself.
The insulators also worked with that same glue --

A. Yes.

Q. —-— Correct?

MS. ST. JULIEN:

Object to the form.
Mischaracterizes his prior testimony.
Assumes facts not in evidence.

BY MS. ROUSSEL:

Q. And that glue that you were using
yourself, would that get on your clothing?

A. Yes.

MS. ST. JULIEN:

6.'4 AmersoniES
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BY MS. ROUSSEL:
0. Describe to me what your clothes

looked like during that time period when you were

a helper.
A. Dusty.
Q. Did you have dust --
A. Dust, white, yeah.
Q. And you had dust from head to toe?
A. Yes.
0. Likewise --

MS. ST. JULIEN:
Object to the form.
(A discussion was held off the record.)
BY MS. ROUSSEL:

Q. Okay. Now, likewise, when you
father was working at Avondale Shipyard, describe
to me what his clothing looked like.

A. About the same, dusty from head to
toe.

Q. When you were at work —-- when you
were a helper working in the living quarters, you
said that they were cutting wallboard and putting
up wallboard.

A. Yes.

Q. And, as a helper, did you have to

6.'4 Amerson =]
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clean up the dust from that cut wallboard?
MULTIPLE DEFENSE COUNSEL:
Object to the form.
THE WITNESS:
Yes.

BY MS. ROUSSEL:

Q. And when you cleaned up the dust
from this wallboard that had been cut, did you
use the same -- did you do it the same way as you
described --

A. Yes.

Q. -- 1in the engine room?

A. Yes.

MR. BELL:

Object to the form.
BY MS. ROUSSEL:

0. You swept it with a whisk broom?
A. Yes.
MR. BELL:

Object to the form.
BY MS. ROUSSEL:

Q. And, of course, not only did you
have to clean up the dust, but you had to clean
up the scraps of the wallboard that were --

A. Yes.

6.'4 AmersoniES
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Page 135

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

This certification is valid only for a
transcript accompanied by my original signature
and original seal on this page.

I, CHERIE' E. WHITE, Certified Court
Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana, do
hereby certify that Libby Eloie Rivet, to whom
the oath was administered, after having been duly
sworn by me upon authority of R.S. 37:2554, did
testify as hereinbefore set forth in the
foregoing 135 pages; that this testimony was
reported by me in the stenotype reporting method,
was prepared andltranscribed by me or under my
personal direction and supervision, and 1is a true
and correct transcript to the best of my ability
and understanding; that I am not related to
counsel or the parties herein, nor am I otherwilse

interested in the outcome of this matter.

Llei & Wi

CSR (TX NO. 10720)
CSR (MS NO. 1514)
RPR (NATIONAL NO. 839452)

96002)

7 Al Arnerson IS

COURT REPORTING & LITIGATION SUPPORT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA
TOMMY RIVET, *

Plaintiff, * Civil Action No.

Versus * 2-22-cv-2584
HUNTINGTON INGALLS, *
Defendant. *

Friday, September 15, 2023
Remote Videotaped Deposition of
GERARD BARIL

10:00 A.M. EASTERN TIME

EXHIBIT
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9
1 MR. SAUNDERS: Thank you, Jonathan.
2 BY MR. SAUNDERS:
3 Q. Mr. Baril, please state your full name for

4 the record.

5 A. Gerard L. Baril.

6 Q. What is your business address?

7 A. 21224 Tabot Boulevard, Hayward, California
8 94545 .

9 Q. And you and I have been through this a

10 number of times, so I know you are very familiar with
11 the deposition process. 1 see no reason to go over
12 any of those ground rules again. But just as a

13 courtesy, as I always do, I will remind you, it is

14 very easy for us to talk over each other, especially
15 in this setting where the testimony is being taken

16 via Zoom.

17 I am going to do my absolute best to not

18 speak over you and let you finish your answer before
19 I ask you my next question, and 1 would just ask that
20 you to allow me to finish my question, even i1f you

21 know what I"m asking you so the court reporter can

22 take us all down accurately.

Henderson Legal Services
202-220-4158 www.hendersonlegalservices.com
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34
1 Libby Rivet, Sr., Libby Rivet, Jr., and Lipton Rivet.
2 Correct?
3 A That 1s correct.
4 Q. Okay. And what is your understanding of
5 the time frame during which Mr. Tommy Rivet 1is
6 alleged to have been para-occupationally exposed to
7 asbestos emanating from the work clothes of his

8 family members?

9 A There®s a couple of clarifications on that.
10 Q. Sure.
11 A It"s not just the work clothes which i1s the

12 source of his para-occupational exposure but also the
13 resulting contamination of the home. So as far as

14 the time frame of Tommy Rivet"s para-occupational

15  exposure, basically, from the day he was born or

16 brought to this house as a baby up until

17 approximately 1976.

18 Q. Okay. Now, before 1 move on to more

19 specific questions, | want to make sure that 1

20 understand your opinions completely iIn this case.

21 You agreed with me that Mr. Rivet"s para-occupational

22 exposure to asbestos emanating from Avondale came via

Henderson Legal Services
202-220-4158 www.hendersonlegalservices.com
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1 his father and two brothers. Correct?
2 A Yes.
3 Q. Okay. Now, as an industrial hygienist,
4  very broadly speaking, i1t Is your opinion that those
5 para-occupational exposures were sufficient to
6 increase his risk of developing mesothelioma.
7 Correct?
8 A Yes.
9 Q- Okay. Am I correct that it i1s of no moment
10 to you as an industrial hygienist, nor is it of any
11 moment iIn your opinion as to which family member
12 brought any specific fiber home on a specific day?
13 A I"m not sure what you mean by moment.
14 Could you --
15 Q. Sure. Broadly speaking, Mr. Tommy Rivet"s
16 exposures would have been overlapping from all three
17 of these individuals at various times. Correct?
18 A. Oh, yes.
19 Q. Just very broadly speaking, 1"m about to
20 start asking you about certain products, equipment,
21 suppliers, contractors, things of that nature. When
22 you"re reaching your opinions iIn this case, is it

Henderson Legal Services
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68
1 (An objection to form was made.)
2 BY MR. SAUNDERS:
3 Q. Can you just give me a thumbnail
4 description of your understanding of the work that
5 Hopeman Brothers would have done at Avondale during
6 the relevant time period?
7 (An objection to form was made.)
8 THE WITNESS: Yes. Essentially, Hopeman
9 Brothers was in charge of installing asbestos wall
10 panels In living quarters aboard ships. In order to
11 install these boards, they had to cut them to size,
12 typically using Skil saws.
13 The process of cutting the boards and
14 installing them with these airborne asbestos fibers,
15 anyone within the proximity would either inhale those
16 fibers or the quarters would be contaminated with the
17 resulting dust.
18 Additionally, none of witnesses indicate
19  that -- let me rephrase that. The witnesses
20 indicated that Hopeman Brothers did not do anything
21 to contaln exposure to asbestos released by using

22 Skil saws. They provided no hazard warnings.

Henderson Legal Services
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1 Basically, they had no control such as local exhaust
2 systems to capture the dust generated by the Skil
3 saws, those local exhausts to capture the
4 contaminates at the point of ventilation. And
5 consequently, those fibers would have been inhaled
6 and contaminated the clothing of others iIn the area
7 such as the Rivet family members at Avondale,
8 resulting in an inhalation exposure sustained by
9 Tommy when he inhaled dust released from their
10 clothing.
11 (An objection was made to the nonresponsive
12 portion.)

13 BY MR. SAUNDERS:

14 Q. You gave me a lot to work with there. |
15  appreciate that. 1[1"m going to try to --

16 A. It was a very broad question.

17 Q. I understand. 1 understand.

18 (Objection to lack of a question and

19 commentary was made.)
20 MR. SAUNDERS: 1°11 get there, Troy. 1
21 promise.

22 MR. BELL: 1"m coming behind you.

Henderson Legal Services
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1 Q. You will agree with me that on page 77 and
2 78 under the section Discussion, Dr. Millette reports
3  that wet adhesives are not released into the air to
4 any measurable extent while applying materials. Then
5 he further goes on to say that -- he further goes on
6 to say, regarding testimony regarding dry dock of the
7 powder, and they didn"t calculate a certain
8 concentration.
9 A. That"s stated in that paragraph. They
10 detected airborne chrysotile -- chrysotile fibers but
11 they didn"t calculate a concentration.
12 MS. ST. JULIEN: Mr. Baril, those are all
13  the questions | have. Thank you.
14 THE WITNESS: Okay. Anyone else?
15 MR. SAUNDERS: Thank you.
16 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This concludes today"s
17 proceedings. We are going off the record. The time
18 iIs 12:08 p.m.
19 (Whereupon, at 12:08 p.m., the deposition
20  of Gerard Baril concluded.)
21 CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC
22 I, Carol J. Robinson, RPR the officer
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before whom the foregoing cause was taken, do hereby
certify that the witness whose testimony appears in
the foregoing transcript was taken by me in shorthand
at the time mentioned in the caption hereof and
thereafter transcribed by me; that said transcript is
a record of the testimony given by said witness to
the best of my ability; that 1 am neither counsel
for, related to, nor employed by any parties to the
action; and further, that I am not a relative or
employee of any counsel or attorney employed by the
parties hereto, nor financially or otherwise
interested iIn the outcome of this action.

i f) MG s
CAROL J. ROBINSON
Notary Public In and for the

District of Columbia

My commission expires:

March 15, 2025
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

CIVIL ACTION NO. 2-22-CV-2584
JUDGE DARREL JAMES PAPILLION
MAGISTRATE JUDGE MICHAEL B. NORTH

TOMMY RIVET
Plaintiff

VERSUS

HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INCORPORATED, ET AL
Defendants

Videotaped Deposition of DR. STEPHEN KRAUS,
taken on September 20, 2023, via Zoom.US and in
the Law Offices of Roussel & Clement, 1550 West

Causeway Approach, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471.

REPORTED BY: EXHIBIT
LESLIE L. NICOSIA
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understand you normally waive it.
BY THE WITNESS:
I waive 1t.
EXAMINATION BY MR. POWELL:

Q. Good morning, Dr. Kraus. My name is
Kevin Powell. 1 represent Huntington Ingalls,
Incorporated in this case. Can we get your
name, please?

A. Stephen, S-t-e-p-h-e-n, Terry,
T-e-r-r-y, Kraus, K-r-a-u-s.

Q- You"re here today to talk to us in the
case i1nvolving Tommy Rivet; is that right?

A. Yeah. Yes. Yeah.

Q- How do you pronounce i1t? Rivet? How
do you pronounce i1t?

A. Rivet, R-i-v-e-t.

Q. You"ve been retained in this case by
plaintiff"s counsel to testify as a medical
expert In the Rivet case, correct?

A. That"s correct.

Q. I don"t think we are going to be too
long this morning. 1 know we have taken some
depositions In recent months that have gone
fairly long. This one is pretty much straight

Avondale, as far as I"m aware. 1Is that your

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

September 20, 2023

7

504 219-1993
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1 BY MS. PUENTE:
2 Object to form.
3 BY THE WITNESS:
4 Yes.
5 EXAMINATION BY MR. POWELL:
6 Q. Did Tommy Rivet have significant
7 para-occupational exposure to asbestos from
8 Foster Wheeler boilers that were installed on
9 ships at Avondale?
10 BY MS. PUENTE:
11 Object to form.
12 BY THE WITNESS:
13 Yes.
14 EXAMINATION BY MR. POWELL:
15 Q. Were those exposures to asbestos from
16 the Foster Wheeler boilers a significant
17 contributing factor in causing Tommy Rivet"s
18 mesothelioma and death?
19 BY MS. PUENTE:
20 Object to form.
21 BY THE WITNESS:
22 Yes.
23 EXAMINATION BY MR. POWELL:
24 Q. Did Tommy Rivet have significant

25 para-occupational exposures to asbestos from the

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE 504 219-1993
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wal lboard work that was conducted by Hopeman
Brothers on ships at Avondale?
BY MR. BELL:
Object to the form.
BY THE WITNESS:
Yes.
EXAMINATION BY MR. POWELL:

Q. Did -- Tommy Rivet"s exposure to
asbestos from the work at Hopeman Brothers, was
that -- was that exposure a significant
contributing factor in causing Tommy Rivet®s
mesothelioma and death?

BY MR. BELL:
Object to the form.
BY THE WITNESS:
Yes.
EXAMINATION BY MR. POWELL:

Q. The Hopeman Brothers workers -- 1
think you are familiar, and you mentioned in
your report that that was a wallboard material.
I think you®"re also familiar with the use of
Maronite, an amosite-containing material that
was laminated with various veneers. One of
those was used on ships was a product called

"Micarta"™ manufactured by Westinghouse. Do you

PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

September 20, 2023

74

504 219-1993
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CERTIFICATE

This certification is valid only for a transcript with my
briginal signature and original required seal on this page.

I, LESLIE L. NICOSIA, Certified Court Reporter in and for
the State of Louisiana, the "officer" before whom this sworn
testimony was taken, do hereby certify:

That DR. STEPHEN KRAUS, to whom oath was administered by
me upon authority of R.S. 37:2554, did testify as herein set
forth in the foregoing pages;

That this proceeding and testimony was reported by me in
stenotype method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under
my personal direction and supervision, and is a true and
correct transcript to the best of my ability and
understanding;

That this transcript has been prepared in compliance with
transcript format guidelines required by statute or rules of
the Roard, and I am informed about the complete arrangement,
financial or otherwise, with the person or entity making
arrangements for deposition services;

That I have acted in compliance with the prohibition on
contractual relationships as defined by Louisiana Code of
Civil Procedure Article 1434 and in rules and advisory
opinions of the Board;

That I have no actual knowledge of any prohibited
employment or contractual relationship, direct or indirect,
between a court reporting firm and any party litigant in this
matter, nor is there any such relationship between myself and
a party litigant in this matter; :

That I am not related to counsel or to the parties
herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the outcome of this
matter. "
VWQ%/ ;A
o 7-»-«4{/ AW SN

e .
Vo »
ARSI s W

LESLIE L. NICOSIA, CCR
Cert. No. 95004

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS & FREESE

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS
315 METAIRIE ROAD, SUITE 101
METAIRIE, LA 70005
PHONE (504) 219-1993
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA
CIVIL ACTION NO. 2-22-cv-2584

TOMMY RIVET,

PlaintiffF,
VS.

HUNTINGTON INGALLS INCORPORATED,
ET AL.,

Defendants.

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF
RODNEY J. LANDRENEAU, M.D.

Pages 1 - 104

Holiday Inn Express & Suites
2580 Gulf to Bay Boulevard
Clearwater, Florida 33765

Monday, September 18, 2023

Stenographically Reported By:
Denise Sankary, RPR, RMR, CRR

Job No. 54245
EXHIBIT
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1 Dr. Landreneau.
2 THE COURT REPORTER: Doctor, would you
3 raise your right hand, please?
4 Do you swear the testimony you®re about to
5 give today will be the truth, the whole truth,
6 and nothing but the truth?
7 THE WITNESS: Yes.
8 THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you.
9 THE WITNESS: Good morning.

10 Thereupon:
11 RODNEY J. LANDRENEAU, M.D.
12 having been first duly sworn, was examined and

13 testified as follows:

14 MR. LASSEUS: Excuse me. Do we have the
15 usual stipulations?

16 MS. ROUSSEL: Yes. All objections are
17 reserved except as to form and responsiveness.
18 And an objection by one is good as to all.

19 That was Ed Lasseus.

20 And you can just put, when they object:
21 Defense counsel objects.

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 BY MS. CAPODICE:

24 Q. Good morning, Dr. Landreneau.

25 Are you ready to start?

Henderson Legal Services
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1 BY MS. CAPODICE:
2 Q. The next sentence of your report, you say

3  that Tommy Rivet"s father and brothers described
4 working around the cutting of wallboard performed by

5 Hopeman Brothers.

6 Do you see that?
7 A Yes.
8 Q- Is 1t your opinion that Tommy Rivet"s

9 father and brothers sustained exposure to asbestos

10  that i1s attributable to Hopeman Brothers® wallboard

11 work?

12 DEFENSE COUNSEL: Object to form. Lack of
13 foundation. Assumes facts not In evidence.

14 A Yes.

15 BY MS. CAPODICE:

16 Q- Is 1t your opinion that Tommy Rivet

17 sustained exposure to asbestos attributable to

18 Hopeman Brothers®™ wallboard work?

19 DEFENSE COUNSEL: Object to form. Lack of
20 foundation.

21 A Yes.

22 BY MS. CAPODICE:

23 Q- In your opinion, was that exposure a

24 substantial contributing cause of his mesothelioma?

25 DEFENSE COUNSEL: Object to form. Lack of

Henderson Legal Services
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1 foundation.
2 A. Yes.
3 BY MS. CAPODICE:
4 Q. In your opinion, was Tommy Rivet exposed

14 A.

15 Q.

23 report.

24

25 A.

5 to asbestos for both the Marinite and the Micarta

6 portions of Hopeman®s wallboards?

7 DEFENSE COUNSEL: Object to the form.
8 A Yes.

9 BY MS. CAPODICE:

10 Q- Was the exposure that Tommy Rivet

11  sustained from the Marinite portion of those boards
12 a substantial contributing cause of his

13 mesothel ioma?

16 sustained from the Micarta portion of those
17 wallboards a substantial contributing cause of his

18 mesothel ioma?

19 DEFENSE COUNSEL: Object to the form.
20 A. Yes.

21 BY MS. CAPODICE:

22 Q- I want to jump now to page 25 of your

Yes.

Was the exposure that Tommy Rivet

Are you with me?

Yes.

202-220-4158
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1 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

3 STATE OF FLORIDA
4 COUNTY OF PINELLAS

7 I, DENISE SANKARY, Registered Merit

8 Reporter, do hereby certify that 1 was authorized
9 to and did stenographically report the foregoing
10 videotaped deposition of RODNEY J. LANDRENEAU,
11 M.D.; pages 1 through 102; that a review of the
12 transcript was not requested; and that the

13 transcript Is a true record of my stenographic
14 notes.

15 I FURTHER CERTIFY that 1 am not a

16 relative, employee, attorney, or counsel of any
17 of the parties, nor am I a relative or employee
18 of any of the parties®™ attorneys or counsel

19 connected with the action, nor am I financially
20 interested iIn the action.

21 Dated this 27th day of September, 2023.
22

- Do, o

DENISE SANKARY, RPR, RMR, CRR

25
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119-1986=022-0080]

TA CHILD'S LAST NAME
RAGUSA '

T8 FIRST NAME
__VALERIE

1C SECOND NAME
ANN

. 2A BIRTH DATE . 2B TIME OF BIRTH

3 SEX

_FEMALE

4 NUMBER BORN
SINGAFE

5 BIRTH ORDER

M H 1986 12332 PM
6A ) (CITY, TOWN, OR LOCATION)

GRET NA

6B PARISH OF BIRTH
JEFFERSON

GC NAME OF HOSPITAL OR INSTITUTION
MEADOWCREST HOSPITAL

7A RESIDENCE OF MOTHER (CITY, TOWN, OR LOCATION)
MARRERD

7B PARISH » ; - 7C STATE):

7D ZIP CODE

7E STREET ADDRESS OF RESIDENCE
441 37T. ANN ST

JEFFERSON ‘ | LUu#ﬁiANA

BA FATHER’S LAST NAME

RABUSA - .
88 FIRST NAME 8C kSECOND NAME
_ FRANK CPAUL

55 CITY AND STATE OF BIRTH (IF NOT U.5,, NAME OF COUNTR ¥
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA d

" BE AGE AT THIS BIRTH
33

9A MOTHER’S MAIDEN NAME

-

" 9B FIRST NAME
‘ MAXINE

POLKEY . : * o
: {

19C SECOND NAME

BECKY

ik 9D CITY AND STATE OF BIRTH (IF NOT U.S., NAME OF COUNTRI’)
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA /

9E AGE AT THIS BIRTH , |

29 . ‘ 1"
FILE DATE DATE ISSUED
MAY 22, 1986 | JULY 25, 1986

§ANDRA L. ROBINSON M.D., M.P.H,
SECRETARY & STATE HEALTH OFFICER ,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN RESOURCES

2
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CERTIFICATE OF LIVE BIRTH

L2516018 BIRTH
TA CHILD'S LAST NAME
DANDRY
1B FIRST NAMI
ERICA
2A BIRTH DATI | 28 TINME OF BIRTH
|: 10 PM
6A PLACE OF BIRTH (CITY YWN. OR LOCATION
MARRERO
68 PARISH OF BIRTH
JEFFERSON
6C NAME OF HOSPITAL OR INSTITUTION
WEST JEFFERSON GENERAL HOSPITAL

{ER (CITY, TOWN, OR LOCATION

£

TN D

7A RESIDENCE OF MO
WESTWEGO
" 7B PARISH

JEFFERSON

7E STREET ADDRESS OF RESIDENCH
1318 EAST DRIVE

"~ 8A FATHER'S LAST NAME

DANDRY JR

8B FIRST NAME
MICHAEL

8D CITY AND STATE OF BIRTH (IF NOT U.S NAME OF COUNTRY)
LOUISIANA

T BE AGE AT THIS BIRTH -

[

9A MOTHER'S MAIDEN NAME
LACOMBE

9B FIRST NAMI [9C SECOND NAN
SUSAN LOUISE

~ 9D CITY AND STATE OF BIRTH (IF NOT U.S., NAME OF COUNTRY) F
LOUISIANA

9F AGE AT THIS BIRTH

A
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1442 DEPOSITION HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INC. DANNY JOYCE August 24, 2023

1
CIVIL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE PARISH OR ORLEANS
STATE OF LOUISIANA

NO. 2022-09445 DIVISION "A™ SECTION 16
HARRIS J. MATHERNE JR.
VERSUS
LOUISIANA INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION, et al
(PARTICIPATING VIA ZOOM AS NOTED)

Videotaped Article 1442 Deposition of
HUNTINGTON INGALLS INCORPORATED THROUGH ITS
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DANNY JOYCE, given at
Blue Williams, LLC, 1060 West Causeway
Approach, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471, on

August 24th, 2023.

VIDEOGRAPHER:
GILLEY DELORIMIER (DEPO-VUE, INC.)
REPORTED BY:
JOSEPH A. FAIRBANKS, JR., CCR
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER #75005

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE EXHIBIT 504 219-1993
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1442 DEPOSITION HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INC. DANNY JOYCE
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25

THE VIDEOGRAPHER:

We"re now on the record. This is
the 1442 of Huntington Ingalls,
Incorporated, through its
representative Danny Joyce. This
deposition is being held today at 1060
West Causeway Approach, in Mandeville,
Louisiana, on August 24th, 2023, at
10:05 a.m.

DANNY JOYCE,
a witness named in the above stipulation,
having been first duly sworn, was examined and
testified on his oath as follows:
THE REPORTER:

Usual stipulation?

MR. BELL:
Yes.

MR. MINYARD:
Yes.

THE REPORTER:

Okay. One objection good for

all?

MR. BELL:
Yes.

MR. MINYARD:

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 24, 2023

7

504 219-1993
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1442 DEPOSITION HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INC. DANNY JOYCE
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25

Object to form.
EXAMINATION BY MR. CLEMENT:

Q. Is that right?

A. That certainly could be the case.

Q. In questioning by Mr. Bell, he had
asked you a question as to whether or not you
were aware that Avondale -- aware that the
wal lboard used by carpenters, I"m assuming you
meant Avondale carpenters, was similar to the
wal lboard used by Hopeman Brothers. And your
response was -- you put into your response that
I"'m aware of that In the early 1960s?

A. Yes. At the main yard.

Q- At the -- okay. What was i1t about
that fifties or sixties time? |1 don"t
understand why you put that into the answer.
What was 1t about the fTifties or sixties?

MR. BURG:

I*"m gonna object. 1t completely
mischaracterizes his testimony. He
said the forties and fifties. He
never said the sixties.

A. No. When we were talking about the
wal lboard, Avondale carpenters installing

wallboard at the main yard, on that I was

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 24, 2023

194

504 219-1993
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1442 DEPOSITION HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INC. DANNY JOYCE

24
25

speaking of installing a similar product prior
to Hopeman Brothers working at Avondale.
EXAMINATION BY MR. CLEMENT:

Q- Okay .

A. And there was another joiner company
that was there before Hopeman Brothers, as
well, and they installed similar boards. And
then when Hopeman Brothers were hired, they
became pretty much the sole installer of
Marinite and Micarta board and/or Consoweld or
other boards in living quarters of vessels
being built at Avondale main yard.

Q. Okay. And 1 thought what"s what you
meant --

A. That"s right.

Q- -- so let me get a further
clarification.

MR. BURG:
I*"m gonna just object to the
nonresponsive portion of that.
Go ahead.
EXAMINATION BY MR. CLEMENT:

Q- So, there"s a certain point iIn time 1iIn

Avondale®s history where Avondale 1s -- has i1ts

own employees that®"s doing work with the

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 24, 2023

195

504 219-1993
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1442 DEPOSITION HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INC. DANNY JOYCE

1
2
3
4
)
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

wallboard similar to what Hopeman was using.

Right?
A. Right.
Q. Is 1t your appreciation that once

Hopeman came along, that the Avondale employees
were no longer doing that joiner work with the
Micarta and Marinite type panels?

A. That®s my appreciation.

Q. Okay. And is it your appreciation --
well, strike that. You testified that in your
understanding as a corporate representative for
Avondale, that there was a -- the words you
used was an ebb and flow, on an as-needed
basis, for employees or contractors from the
main yard being brought to other yards that
Avondale owned and operated. Is my
understanding correct?

MR. BURG:
Object to form.

A. And vice versa; employees from other
yards would come to the main yard on an
as-needed basis. And Alexander testified about
the I0WA project, a big project with a
tremendous manpower demand. So they were

pulling people from Harvey, from Bayou Black,

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS AND FREESE

August 24, 2023

196

504 219-1993
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249

1

2 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

3

4 NOTE: This transcript certification is
valid only when accompanied by my original
signature over my state seal.

6

7 I, JOSEPH A. FAIRBANKS, JR., CCR, RPR,
Certified Court Reporter in and for the State

38 of Louisiana, as the officer before whom the
foregoing was taken, do hereby certify:

9 That the witness was sworn by me upon

authority of R.S. 37:2554 and did testify as

10 set forth in the foregoing pages;

That said proceeding and testimony was
11 reported by me in the stenotype reporting
method, was thereafter transcribed and prepared
12 by me or under my personal direction and
supervision, and is a true and correct

13 transcription to the best of my ability and
understanding;

14 That this transcript was prepared in
compliance with transcript format guidelines

15 established by statute or by rules of the

Board;
16 That I am knowledgeable of the
arrangements, financial and otherwise, with the
17 person on entity arranging for reporting

services, and that I have acted in compliance
18 with the prohibition on contractural
relationships as defined by the Louisiana Code
19 of Civil Procedure Article 1434 and in rules
and advisory opinions of the Board;

20 That I am not related to counsel or to
the parties herein, nor am I otherwise

21 interested in the outcome of this matter.

22 o
e

23 o .»

24 JOSEPH A. FAIRBANKS, JR., C@R, RPR /

25 CERTIFIED COQURT REPORTER 75005 »

JOHNS, PENDLETON, FAIRBANKS & FREESE

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS
315 METAIRIE ROAD, SUITE 101
METAIRIE, LA 70005
PHONE (504) 219-1993
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BERTRAM CORNELIUS HOPEMAN - VOLUME 1

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF WHITFIELD COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

JAMES HAROLD O'DONNELL, JR. )
AND MARGARET WANDA O'DONNELL, )
HIS WIFE )
)
VERSUS ) NO. 13-CI 1767-B
)
GEORGIA-PACIFIC, LLC, )
INDIVIDUALLY AND AS )
SUCCESSOR-IN-INTEREST TO )
GEORGIA PACIFIC OPERATION; CBS)
CORPORATION (F/K/A VIACOM, )
INC., SUCCESSOR BY MERGER WITH)
CBS CORPORATION F/K/A )
WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC )
CORPORATION) ; HOPEMAN )
BROTHERS, INC.,; INTERNATIONAL)
PAPER COMPANY, INDIVIDUALLY )
AND AS SUCCESSOR BY MERGER )
WITH CHAMPION INTERNATIONAL )
CORPORATION, SUCCESSOR BY )
MERGER WITH UNITED STATES )
PLYWOOD CORPORATION; UNION )
CARBIDE CORPORATION; AND JOHN )
DOES NO. 1-10 )

R b e I b b b b I b b I b b b b b A S b b d b b d b b I 2 b b b b b d b b d b b S b S i b b 4

CIVIL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE PARISH OF ORLEANS
STATE OF LOUISIANA

JAMES CAPDEBOSCQ
VERSUS NO. 14-4444
DIVISION F
AVONDALE INDUSTRIES, INC.,
F/K/A NORTHROP GRUMMAN SHIP
SYSTEMS, INC., N/K/A

HUNTINGTON INGALLS
INCORPORATED, ET AL.

~— — — — ~— ~— ~— ~— ~—

R b I b b d b b d b b A b b b b b b S b b I b b A b b b 2 b b A b b S b b d b b b 2 b i i b b 4

Page 1
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BERTRAM CORNELIUS HOPEMAN - VOLUME 1

CIVIL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE PARISH OF ORLEANS
STATE OF LOUISIANA

ANNETTE LAPORTE AND MONIQUE
RIPP, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON
BEHALF OF JOSEPH LAPORTE, JR.

DIVISION "N"
HUNTINGTON INGALLS, INC.,

)
)
)
)
VERSUS )NO. 2012-6493
)
)
ET AL. )
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CIVIL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE PARISH OF ORLEANS
STATE OF LOUISIANA
JOSEPH B. SAVOIE, JR.

)

)
VERSUS JNO. 2014-08285

) DIVISION "G"
PENNSYLVANIA GENERAL )
INSURANCE COMPANY, ET AL. )

R R b A b b g b d b b b b b b b b b g b b b b b b I b b g b A b b b b S b b b b g b b b b b b g 4

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

MICHAEL J. COMARDELLE

ECTION: "I" (D)
PENNSYLVANIA GENERAL

)
)
VERSUS )NO. 2:13-CV-06555
) S
)
INSURANCE COMPANY, ET AL. )

R R R b b g b d b b b b b b b b b g b b b b g b b b b g b A b b b b S b b b b g b b b b b b g 4

Page 2
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BERTRAM CORNELIUS HOPEMAN - VOLUME 1

CIVIL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE PARISH OF ORLEANS
STATE OF LOUISIANA

WAYNE J. CAMBRE
VERSUS NO. 2013-10405
DIVISION "D"
AVONDALE INDUSTRIES, INC.,
ET AL

~_— — — ~— ~— ~—
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CIVIL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE PARISH OF ORLEANS
STATE OF LOUISIANA

REGINALD JONES

NO. 2014-06711
DIVISION "G"

VERSUS

AMERICAN EMPLOYERS INSURANCE
COMPANY, ET AL

~_— — — ~— ~— ~—

VOLUME T

VIDEO DEPOSITION OF BERTRAM CORNELIUS HOPEMAN
TAKEN AT COURINGTON, KIEFER & SOMMERS, LLC
650 POYDRAS STREET, 11TH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70130
ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2014, AT 10:06 A.M.

REPORTED BY: ANNA COATES, CCR, RPR

Page 3

HG LITIGATION SERVICES
HGLITIGATION.COM
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BERTRAM CORNELIUS HOPEMAN - VOLUME 1

MRS. ZANOVEC: This is Jamie Zanovec with
Willingham, Fultz & Cougill in the Capdeboscqg,
Comardelle, Reginald Jones, Laporte, Savoie, and
Cambre matters.

MR. O'CONNELL: Anybody else on the phone?

Silence permeating the room. Folks on the
phone, please put your phones on mute. If there
are continual interruptions on the phone, I'm just
going to hang it up.

Madam Court Reporter, since we had this long
interruption, could you swear the Witness in
again, so we have a relatively clean flow.
(WHEREUPON,

BERTRAM CORNELTIUS HOPEMAN,
AFTER HAVING BEEN FIRST DULY SWORN BY THE
ABOVE-MENTIONED COURT REPORTER, DID TESTIFY AS
FOLLOWS)

EXAMINATION BY MR. O'CONNELL:

Q. Good morning, sir.

A. Good morning.

Q. Could you state your name for the
record.

A. Bertram Cornelius Hopeman.

Q. You commonly give go by Bert?

A. Yes. And please use that.

Page 24

HG LITIGATION SERVICES
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Case 24824280K LP-D IDoc B6e2bneifiléd 07/806241 1 ARiere d Page0s24f BoPEDdD# DéSt

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Exhibit(s) 25 Page 5 of 8
BERTRAM CORNELIUS HOPEMAN - VOLUME 1

Page 41

would be based solely on hearsay; that is, what
either somebody told you or perhaps any documents
that you may have reviewed going forward when you
started with Hopeman Brothers?

A. Correct.

Q. I'll get back into that a little bit
later. When you started with Hopeman Brothers in
1964, was that in about June of 19647

A. It was -- yes, it was right after
graduated. I think we graduated early June.

Q. It's my understanding, sir, when you
started with Hopeman Brothers, your classification
was a trainee?

A. Correct.

Q. And you were a trainee at a location
called the Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock located in
Chester, Pennsylvania?

A. That 1s correct.

Q. So the jury understands, Chester,
Pennsylvania is just right outside of
Philadelphia®?

A. That's correct.

Q. Quite a large shipyard?

A. It was a substantial shipyard. It

wasn't small. But compared to some in the

HG LITIGATION SERVICES
HGLITIGATION.COM
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cut and install Marinite board during the
installation of that board aboard various vessels?

A. We cut and installed bulkhead panels.
And those panels were composite panels, things
glued together. And the core I believe of the
panel was Marinite. And then there was a facing
on i1t, Micarta facing. And that was the panel we
installed.

Q. We'll talk about that in a second.

A. Okay.

MR. COLE: Objection to form.

EXAMINATION BY MR. O'CONNELL:

Q. Sir, you would agree with me that not
every cut, not every installation that occurred
between 1964 and 1977, was this combination of
Marinite and Micarta, not every time they did
that; Hopeman Brothers, that is?

A. And -- so repeat -- ask the question
another way. Are you asking did they install the
Marinite panel without facing?

Q. Let me ask it this way. You're aware,
sir, that at times, at times, not even a majority,
but at times, between 1964 and 1977, Hopeman
Brothers employees would cut Marinite board

without the facing on it, that could happen?
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yes.

Q. You knew based upon your own personal
recollection even back in 1964, that Hopeman
Brothers would purchase Marinite from
Johns-Manville and purchase Micarta, which was
manufactured by Westinghouse?

A. Right.

Q. And have those products shipped to Wayne
Manufacturing Company in Waynesboro, Virginia®?

A. No, I did not know that.

Q. When did you first come to that

realization, sir?

A. I don't remember. All honesty, I don't
remember.
Q. Fair enough. Was it before you became

operational head of the company that you came to
that knowledge?

A. I don't remember that either. I
honestly don't remember when -- I probably knew at
some point, but if you sat here -- you'wve just
raised the question to me. I don't remember
knowing who bought -- who actually placed the
purchase order for the Marinite or the Micarta and
how that worked. So I can't really answer your

question.
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1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2 This certification is valid only for a
3 Ctranscript accompanied by my original signature
4 and original seal on this page.
5 I, ANNA C. COATES, CCR, RPR, do hereby

6 certify that BERTRAM C. HOPEMAN, to whom the oath
7 was administered, after having been duly sworn by
8 me upon authority of R.S. 37:2554, did testify as

9 herein above set forth in the foregoing 287 pages;

10 that this testimony was reported by me in the
11 stenotype reporting method, was prepared and
12 transcribed by me and is a true and correct

13 transcript to the best of my ability; that the

14 transcript has been prepared in compliance with

15 transcript format guidelines required by rules of
16 the board; that I have acted in compliance with

17 the prohibition on contractual relationships, as
18 defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure

19 Article 1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of

20 the board; that I am not related to counsel or the

21 parties hereto, nor am I otherwise interested in
22 the outcome of this matjer.

23 i\_ | AN

24 ANNA COATES, CCR, RPR

25 LOUISIANA CCR NO. 97018
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DAVID E. BALDWIN,

having been produced and first duly sworn, testified as

follows:

MR. LOMAX: I'd like to make a statement for the

record that I have reviewed Mr. Williams' response to

. the 30(b)5 document request and, also, I understand

from Mr. Williams that -- through conversations that

- he would like to restrict this 30(b)6 deposition of"

Mr. Baldwin -- wherein Mr. Baldwin has been provided
as a 30(b)6 deponent for Westinghouse, he would like
to restrict the deposition to Micarta Marine Products
manufactured by Westinghouse. :

We do not agree that our guestions would be
restricted to only questions involving Micarta, but
we would like to interrogate Westinghouse
representative on any asbestos productlthat théy may
or have in the past manufactured or sold. |

We feel like that any of the questions along
those linef may, in fact, lead to admissible -- they

are discoverable and may lead to admissible evidence

in this trial. So we don't want to be restricted to

that.
However, in order to move the discovery along,
we are agreeing that we will focus at first on

Micarta and, hopefully, we can do that in one day

-
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organic chemistry.

Q. Did they involve the plastic laminate materials
that you later on worked on the patent for Westinghouse?

A. KRo.

Q. What was the use of these polymers in organic

chemicals?
A. Scientific discovery.

Q. Do you know whether or not the polymers that you

worked on later on became to be usable materials or usable

proauéts in the industry?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Did they form any type of precursor to
fire-retardant decorative laminates?

A‘A No.

Q. Or post-formable -- was t